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{{Introducing Foundation House}}

T

he Victorian Foundation for
Survivors of Torture Inc. (VFST) or
‘Foundation House’ as it is also known
was established in 1987 to meet the
needs of people in Victoria who had been
subjected to torture or other traumatic
events in their country of origin or while
fleeing those countries.
Foundation House is a not-for-profit
organisation managed by an elected board.
Its work is funded by the Victorian and
Commonwealth Governments, charitable
trusts and donations from private
individuals.
The main areas of activity of
Foundation House are:
• providing direct services to clients in the
form of counselling, advocacy, family
support, group work, psycho-education,
information and complementary
therapies
• offering professional and organisational
development, consultancy and resources

to assist health, education and other
community service providers to enhance
the responsiveness of their services
to the needs of people of refugee
backgrounds
• working with the Victorian and
Commonwealth Governments to ensure
that policies and programs have proper
regard to the needs of people of refugee
backgrounds
• conducting and contributing to research
about the needs of people of refugee
backgrounds and the best possible ways
of meeting those needs.
Foundation House provides services
across Melbourne with its primary
locations at Brunswick, Dandenong and
Sunshine and an outpost in Ringwood.
Services are also provided in a number of
rural and regional centres across Victoria.
Foundation House is nondenominational, politically neutral and
non-aligned.

Our guiding principles
1. Torture is an unacceptable violation
of human rights regardless of who
is the perpetrator or for whatever
purpose it is utilized.
2. Victorian Foundation for Survivors
of Torture Inc. (VFST) is not
politically aligned. VFST will
advocate for policies that promote
the health, wellbeing and human
rights of refugees and asylum
seekers and denounce the use of
torture by any regime.
3. All survivors of torture have the
right to rehabilitation and support
services, regardless of their country
of origin, their political or religious
beliefs and regardless of the
circumstances surrounding the
torture.
4. In accepting the responsibility for
providing a home for survivors of
torture, the Australian community

II

must also accept responsibility for
providing them with appropriate
community and health services.
5. Services provided should be of
the highest possible standard,
multifaceted and operate within
a community development
framework.
6. VFST services must encourage the
development of self-esteem, human
rights and the positive reinforcement
of the individual’s ability to recover
and rebuilt their lives. Selfdetermination and independence
will be fostered at all times.
7. VFST will maintain an
organisational culture that is
productive, innovative, sustainable
and accountable and also maintain
a commitment to supporting and
strengthening the capacity of its staff
team.

Indigenous acknowledgment
The primary locations of The Victorian
Foundation for Survivors of Torture
Inc. (VFST) at Brunswick, Dandenong,
Sunshine and Ringwood are on the
traditional lands of the Wurundjeri
people. In keeping with Foundation
House’s aspirations to heal individuals
and communities we recognise the
loss of land, children, language, lore
and spiritual and physical wellbeing
of the Wurundjeri people and other
Indigenous Victorians due to the
impact of colonisation. We believe
that acknowledging the past and
its impact on the present is vital in
building strong Victorian communities.
We recognise the survival and
enduring strengths of Victorian
Indigenous culture in spite of
such dispossession and aim to
build respectful and informed
relationships with the Victorian
Indigenous community based on
the acknowledgment of their unique
position as the traditional owners of
Victoria. As such, Foundation House
is committed to the acknowledgment
and participation of Indigenous
Victorians within Foundation House
events and this is reflected in our
official protocols.

Patrons
Prof. Hilary Charlesworth am
Ms. Dur-e Dara oam
Mr. Andrew Demetriou ao
Prof. David de Kretser ac
Mrs. Jan de Kretser
Mr. Petro Georgiou ao
Hon. Michael Kirby ac cmg
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{{Our organisation}}
Reports from the Chair and CEO
After a year of significant political change, with refugee
and asylum seeker issues prominent in media and political debates,
Foundation House Chair Lynne Haultain and CEO Paris Aristotle
discuss the challenges of working in such a volatile environment,
while maintaining quality of service, keeping focus on core values,
and continuing to find innovative ways to assist people from refugee
backgrounds who have survived torture and trauma.
Lynne – Paris it’s been a pretty volatile
year with the issues that are critical to us
and to our clients front and centre of the
political debate. What has that meant for
Foundation House?
Paris – I think operating in such a volatile environment has been a significant
challenge for us and other organisations in
this sector. Maintaining focus and securing
the resources needed to face an increasingly complex and highly sensitive area of
work is never easy. In the case of working
with asylum seekers, be they in detention
or in the community, the political situation places a greater spotlight on all of our
work. It puts increased pressure on the organisation to not just maintain but to raise
standards in order to protect the wellbeing
of our clients and staff and to reinforce
Foundation House’s credibility.
Lynne – And how does it impact on
morale—how do people respond to all that
incredible whirlwind of comment and discussion and debate and stereotyping and
absurd claims that are made to and fro?

Paris – It knocks staff around at times and
can leave us feeling despairing when we
know that the lived experience of many of
our clients is so different to things being reported. However, one of the differentiating
factors for us is that our largest number of
clients are those that come through the offshore humanitarian program. They come
from camps in Africa, the Middle East
and Thailand and so on, and while many
have suffered horrific experiences of loss,
torture, trauma and family separation there
is greater acceptance and support available
for them in the settlement process. They
have certainty of residency and eventually
citizenship and so our work with them can
focus on being able to build a future with
confidence. That is not necessarily the case
with asylum seekers whose futures are far
less certain and where the level of support
and acceptance is much less. What all of
this means is that the focus of Foundation
House is on a wider range of issues and
dimensions.
Lynne – In fact our work with asylum seekers
has gone to about 25 per cent this year.

I n M e mo r i a m
Mr. Victor Spitzer

F

oundation House lost a friend and supporter this year
with the passing of Mr Victor Spitzer. Vic was a kind and thoughtful man

who held genuine concern for those less fortunate within our community.

Vic and his wonderful wife Fleur acted on that concern by providing tangible
support to many worthy causes. Foundation House was fortunate enough to be
one of them. Our organisation is made up of many good people who share our
values, stand by our work and in doing so lend support to the people we serve.
Vic was one of those very good people and he will truly be missed. Our sympathies
and heartfelt thanks go to Fleur and Victor’s family.
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Paris – Yes, 25 per cent compared to only
five or ten per cent of our caseload four
years ago—it’s a very big jump and has required us to structure some aspects of our
work differently and to recruit new staff for
this particular area.
Lynne – I think in these challenging times
we have taken a very reasoned and appropriate position publicly in this context and
tried to make a positive contribution.
Paris – I think we’ve always maintained
a view that people need to be treated humanely and fairly. We recognize the diverse
and crucial issues facing refugees being resettled through our humanitarian program
and we have maintained a view that asylum
policy, while extremely complex, should
not be focused purely on deterrence or
strategies that prevent people from seeking
protection. There are no simple answers
or solutions to these policy dilemmas and
the objective is really to examine all of the
issues honestly and develop better ways to
manage them humanely.
Lynne – Twenty odd years ago we were
talking about rebuilding shattered lives,
and we still are.
Paris – There are some things that are
perpetual issues that always need to be addressed, and there are some things that
are very different. The nature of the environment has changed but Foundation
House’s core principles remain central to
our existence regardless of any change in
circumstances. We maintain our principles
through all the volatility and changing dynamics and we analyse the changed circumstances rigorously so that we can continue
to advance the needs of refugees without
compromising our core beliefs. Our commitment to that sustains us and combined
with the dedication of the staff team we
have assisted over 3800 clients this year.
Lynne – The other effect that core focus
has is that over that time we’ve become
even more rigorous with our commitment
to risk management, around maintaining
those services, making sure we’ve got appropriate succession planning in place,
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Lynne – We’ve long had a tradition of innovation, but I’m always really impressed
by the ways in which we engage with young
people. Through the Schools program and
through some really interesting research
we are doing, but also with Ucan2. We’ve
mentioned over a number of years that
this is a really innovative and important
program for young people—connecting
through their education experience, vocational training, links with their communities and workplaces. It has incredibly
positive effects on their morale and their
settlement.
Paris – Absolutely. One of the benefits of
the government policy last year to increase
the refugee quota to 20,000 places was
an increase in funding for organisations
like Foundation House to meet additional
demand. We were able to capitalize on that
additional funding to, for example, consolidate the group work components of the
Ucan2 program. Group work is essential to
how young people work through the issues
of trauma and how they progress towards
their aspirations for the future. One of our
core priorities over the next 12 months is to
work with the new Federal Government to
see if we can consolidate the funding necessary for the Ucan2 program.
>> Foundation House CEO Paris Aristotle and Chair Lynne Haultain.

really being very mindful of our financial
resourcing. It really focuses the mind, I
think, to be in such a volatile environment.
Paris – The guidance from the Board
in enabling us to manage that has been
crucial. It’s an ongoing challenge for any
organisation in this field. The administrative, finance and IT areas have been
working creatively and innovatively about
ways of bolstering those aspects of our operations so that we can function at optimal
levels. The progress those teams are
making is crucial if we are to enable all of
our clients programs to be as efficient and
effective as possible.
Lynne – We’ve managed to continue to
expand the sort of support and capacity
building we deliver. I’m thinking of the
State Government announcement this
year that has resulted in some extraordinary support for refugee health nurses and
expansion of our services into rural and regional Victoria. We’re extremely appreciative—it’s making a big difference to people
who live beyond Melbourne.

Paris – Yes, the Victorian Government
committed a further $22 million in the
Health portfolio over the next four years.
This is extraordinary considering the financial pressures on government budgets
at present. No other state or territory government has made such an investment.
Through the leadership of Ministers David
Davis and Mary Wooldridge, the State
Government has continued the longstanding tradition of keeping Victoria at the forefront of development in this area.
Foundation House has been one of the
beneficiaries but so too have rural and regional services, the Refugee Health Nurses
Program and health services for asylum
seekers.
Much of the credit for this belongs
also to the Victorian Refugee Health
Network, which is co-ordinated through
Foundation House and made up of an
amazing group of agencies and individuals. Their expertise, collaboration and
genuine commitment has been the cornerstone of the network’s success and
has set the standard in this area around
the country.

Lynne – And if that comes off, that will be
such a fine case study of what Foundation
House has been so good at for so long.
Taking philanthropic funding at the outset
to develop innovative and incredibly successful responses to needs in the community, seeing them through a process
of piloting and development, and moving
them into the mainstream support that
people receive through the Humanitarian
program. That’s been one of the hallmarks
of our success and its one that we need to
continue.
Paris – It is. At times it feels a bit overwhelming because building programs
and making the case for them to continue
through government support is not easy
to do. When we can achieve that it leads
to systemic reforms that will benefit refugees whether they are our direct clients or
not. I think in this area you always feel you
take a few steps forward and end up being
knocked a few steps back. However, the incremental progress can nevertheless make
a big difference to the lives of people we
seek to serve. For that reason alone this approach will continue to be our core objective and focus.
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{{Working with survivors}}
Direct Services Overview
Our work with survivors

Client Profile

n the financial year 2012-13,
Foundation House provided direct services to 3815 survivors of torture and trauma.
These services were delivered through two
main programs: the Generalist program
and the Detention program for people who
have received services while in immigration
detention facilities or in Community
Detention. Services for Detention
program clients have been funded by
the Department of Immigration and
Citizenship.
The Generalist program is for clients
who need assistance with problems as
a result of their torture and trauma experiences. It is funded by the Victorian
Department of Human Services and the
Commonwealth Department of Health
(DHS) and Ageing (DoHA) Program
of Assistance to Survivors of Torture
and Trauma (PASTT). The Generalist
program includes permanent residents,
clients who are asylum seekers and have
not received services under the Detention
program and those who no longer receive
services under the Detention Program.
Services for these clients are funded by
DHS.
Direct services for clients include:
• provision of psycho-educative
information, and information relevant to
the receipt of services
• comprehensive assessments of
psychological and social functioning
and history of experiences of traumatic
events
• referral and facilitated access to
mainstream and other services
• group programs
• individual and family counselling
• co-joint assessment and interventions
with community liaison workers who
comprise the Capacity Building Team
• client advocacy
• complementary therapies
• specialist mental health clinic services
All service provision is based on a comprehensive approach to enabling recovery
from the consequences of torture and other
traumatic events related to the refugee experience. The health and well-being of all
family members is part of assessment and
interventions.

Clients of Foundation House come from
over 50 countries. The top four countries of
origin of our clients are Iran, Afghanistan,
Iraq and Burma (Myanmar).
This reflects the national origins of entrants under Australia’s Humanitarian
Program.

I
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The needs and presenting problems of
clients are multiple and complex because
their experiences of torture, trauma, and
systemic persecution are typically repeated
over long periods of time. The cumulative
nature of traumatic experiences cannot be
captured in the quantitative data. However,
a consideration of the countries from
which clients come indicates the long term
nature of conflict and human rights violations. Many children and young people
have not known security and stability until
their arrival in Australia.

Future Challenges
Responding to children and families
As a population, refugee children are both
at high risk of exposure to risk factors and
have reduced access to factors that are
known to protect and promote health and
well-being. Most refugee children will have
been subjected to or have witnessed events
such as war, bombing or shelling, and
death or threat of violent death and injury
to family or friends. All will have experienced some degree of loss, from the loss of
home, place, culture and friendships, to the
more profound loss of parents, siblings and
significant others.
On arrival in Australia children are

required to learn a new language, adapt
to a new set of cultural norms, and orient
themselves to a new and unfamiliar school
system. Adaptation to school may be particularly difficult for those children who have
had no or limited prior school experience.
In responding to the needs of children
we have developed innovative work involving strengthening parents’ awareness
and involvement in promoting their
children’s recovery. This complements
the work of the Services Innovation
Program (see pages 10 and 14) in facilitating parent participation in the
early childhood years and in schools.
Through additional state funding for
work with refugee children and families,
the next three year period will see more
work with children alongside capacity
building with schools, communities and
other child and family services.

Responding to asylum seekers
The majority of asylum seekers who are
our clients have been in detention, but a
significant number—being authorised arrivals—have not been. This is one factor affecting the diverse needs of asylum seekers.
Other critical factors are the extent to which
they have been exposed to traumatic events
in their country of origin and the perilous
nature of their journeys. A number of our
clients are survivors of boat tragedies. We
hold special concerns for the well-being
of children and unaccompanied minors
who experience intense grief as a result of
displacement and separation from family
members.
Some of our clients have been in detention for protracted periods. We have observed the persistent nature of difficulties
related to detention long after they have
been released. The situation of adverse security clients held in immigration indefinitely is such that marked deterioration in
their mental health has occurred with great
risk to their future health.
Specialist services able to respond to the
legacy of torture and other traumatic events
are vital to the needs of asylum seekers.
The work of other funded agencies, and the
voluntary sector, has provided incalculable
support in ensuring that broader mental
health, physical health and family needs
have received much needed attention.
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Like many refugees, Suleiman*

He was threatened with death on three dif- Africans are not gay! Even if I not tell them
fled his home country in north east Africa in ferent occasions. He found it even harder I am gay I cannot be myself.’
fear of his life. Also in common with many to understand this continuing persecution.
Suleiman was referred by his doctor
others, he made a long and difficult journey ‘There are more people in Cairo who were to Foundation House last year, and saw
to Australia, ultimately to arrive at the doors gay, wearing clothes of a woman…I think, Counsellor Advocate Carolyn Wilson. He
why [persecute] me? Maybe because I am also had access to a Foundation House
of Foundation House in Melbourne.
However, though refugee stories may black. Maybe because I seem weak. I am all psychologist, and to massage and natural
have many aspects in common, Foundation the time crying. They take my money, three therapies.
House recognises clients as
‘Carolyn, she listens to me,
individuals beyond the circumgive me hopes, solves many
stances of being a refugee. In
problems. One year ago, if I saw
Suleiman’s case, the difficulties
people talking, I am thinking,
Suleiman’s story
of his journey were compoundhe’s talking about me. I have bad
ed by childhood
dreams.
traumas,
and
‘It has really
issues of gender
changed my life.
and sexuality.
My bad dreams—
Suleiman had a
90%
gone.
difficult early life.
Depression,
‘I am born like
going. Stress,
this. My mum,
going. My studshe looks all the
ies—I was always
time like she unforgetting,
can’t
derstands me,’ he
keep it in my head.
said. ‘My dad, he’s
Now I save all my
a strong man, a reinformation.’
ligion man, I have
He still has
a problem with
not found a perhim. The imam, I
manent place to
have big problems
stay, and currently
with him.
shifts around
When I went
various homeless
to High School,
accommodations.
I have phobias,
But despite his
I can’t believe
hardships, he feels
people. I go to
more able to cope.
school, then
‘It is hard to make
straight to my
friends, because
home.’
I
am
homeless.
But now I have
‘It has really changed my life. My bad
Political and personal persehope.
If
I
have
a
problem, I can
dreams – 90% gone. Depression, going.
cution intersected when he was
fix this, I am not running away,
Stress, going. My studies – I was always
a young adult, and police tried
not crying. My life has changed.
forgetting, can’t keep it in my head.
to coerce him into reporting on
I feel like I am born a new
local gay people. ‘They say, if
person.’
Now I save all my information.’
everyone know you are gay, you
Suleiman wanted to share
have big problem, you are blackthe importance of talking
listed. I said, I can’t, I don’t have
to a someone when you are
information about this. They
struggling.
times they take my phone.’ He became
said, you are not right, you are bad.’
‘A doctor, a psychologist can help you
Political turmoil was also increasing in fearful of going outside. ‘ I have bad heart, with your problems if you give them a
his home country until he feared for his life. depression, not believe myself, not looking chance,’ he said. ‘If you keep silent, if you
‘I have one friend, he gave me passport, he for job.’
do not give him chance, if you stay alone,
Fortunately Suleiman found a sympa- if you cry, it is not good. If you go step by
told me maybe you die, you can’t live your
life here. He told me to go Cairo, maybe you thetic doctor in Cairo, and with his assis- step, tell him all your suffering, they help
tance he came to Australia in 2012.
can save your life.’
you. But if you don’t tell, they can’t help you.
Though things were better, it has been
He went to Cairo in 2003 and was pro‘A person has problems, he needs one
cessed by the UNHCR as a political refugee. difficult for Suleiman to find a place where person to take his hand, from the dark, and
He found work with people with disabilities. he feels safe and comfortable to settle. he is in the light.’
Life in Cairo was still not easy, though, and Housemates were not necessarily sympahe was beaten and robbed more than once. thetic. ‘They give me a hard time. They say, *not his real name

~{ A step into the light }~
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{{Working with survivors}}

Direct Services Data
>> TABLE 1 COUNTRY OF ORIGIN OF VFST
CLIENTS IN 2012–2013
Generalist

Detention	Total

Afghanistan
547
109
656
Bhutan
64		64
Bosnia & Herzegovina 28		
28
Burma (Myanmar)
352
4
356
Burundi
20		20
Cambodia
44		44
Congo, Republic of
12		
12
Congo, Democratic
Republic of
15		
15
Egypt
28		28
Eritrea
27		27
Ethiopia
131		131
India
10
2
12
Iran
577
198
775
Iraq
593
51
644
Kuwait
11
4
15
Liberia
31		31
Nepal
10		10
Nigeria
20
3
23
Not identified
19
4
23
Pakistan
110
13
123
Sierra Leone
25		
25
Somalia
41		41
Sri Lanka
195
128
323
Sudan
105		105
Syria
16
3
19
Thailand
58		58
Turkey
29
2
31
Vietnam
14
1
15
Other**
156
5
161
Total
3288
527 3815

>> Table 2 VFST CLIENTS BY AGE, GENDER AND PROGRAM 2012–2013
GENERALIST	

DETENTION 	NATURAL THERAPIES MENTAL HEALTH CLINIC

Female
Male Female
Male
Female
Male
Female
Male
0-10yrs
115
123
10
15
1
2
3
8
11-20yrs
205
413
13
139
1
13
7
15
21-30 yrs
273
501
33
88
32
19
14
43
31-40 yrs
289
428
45
111
41
42
38
61
41-50 yrs
213
282
11
43
40
28
36
47
51-60 yrs
161
130
1
13
30
15
33
26
61+ yrs
70
85
2
3
8
4
5
10
Total
1326
1962
115
412
153
123
136
210
Note : Clients in Natural therapies and Mental Health Clinic programs are also shown in Generalist
and Detention programs

>> TABLE 3 TYPES OF ASSISTANCE PROVIDED TO VFST CLIENTS 2012–2013
Hours % of Direct Service time
Detention

Generalist

COUNSELLING

COUNSELLING

57%

54%
1%

OTHER
REFERRAL INTAKE

OTHER

3% REFERRAL INTAKE
3% 1% REFERRAL OUT
1% REPORT WRITING
2% ACCOMPANIED

2% 1% REFERRAL OUT
2% REPORT WRITING
4% ADVOCACY

APPOINTMENT

9%
25%

8%

10%

ASSESSMENT

CASE
CONFERENCING

17%

ADVOCACY

ASSESSMENT

CASE
CONFERENCING

0%: ACCOMPANIED APPOINTMENT

Notes
For children born in Australia (n=22), the
country of origin of their parent(s) is listed.
Generalist = all clients who received a service
in the 2012-2013 year, except for those who
received services under the Detention program

>> TABLE 4 NEEDS OF VFST CLIENTS 2012–2013

Detention = all clients who were in a detention
centre or community detention when referred
** Other: There are 39 countries with less than
10 clients
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% frequency at assessment
0–17
YEARS

% frequency at assessment

18+
YEARS

MEDICAL

0–17
YEARS

18+
YEARS

2
2

10
10

13
10

24*
42

medical (continued)

Dental
Detention
Generalist

10
26

8
16

General Practitioner
Detention
Generalist

74
85

74
82

Optometry
Detention
Generalist

0
14

1
8

Specialist Medical
Detention
Generalist

3
17

8
19

Specialist Psychiatry
Detention
Generalist
Social Living needs
Employment
Detention
Generalist

Family Conflict or Breakdown
Detention
25
Generalist
16
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>> TABLE 5 VFST CLIENTS’ EXPERIENCE OF TORTURE AND TRAUMA 2012–2013
NOTE: All data in Table 5 is based on initial assessment and therefore actual numbers of events are under-reported.
% frequency at assessment
0–17
YEARS

% frequency at assessment

18+
YEARS

PHYSICAL VIOLENCE

0–17
YEARS

PHYSICAL VIOLENCE (continued)

Severe Beating
Detention
Generalist
Rape
Detention
Generalist

14
3

36
34

2
1

8
5

Refugee Camp
Detention
Generalist

2
23

0–17
YEARS

18+
YEARS

PSYCHOLOGICAL VIOLENCE (continued)
4
20

PSYCHOLOGICAL VIOLENCE
Dangerous Flight
Detention
Generalist

% frequency at assessment

18+
YEARS

Threat of Harm to Family
Detention
Generalist

55
55

63
73

Witnessing Others Killed
Detention
Generalist

20
12

17
34

Witnessing Physical Violence
Detention
Generalist

43
45

47
69

66
54

61
68

14
13

Detention of Family or Friends
Detention
11
Generalist
8

20
24

3
5

Disapearance of Family Members
Detention
25
Generalist
19

17
29

Detention – Concentration Camp
Detention
0
Generalist
0

1
2

9
10

6
18

Forced Separation from Family
Detention
34
Generalist
37

39
57

Detention – Home Detention
Detention
Generalist

0
0

0
1

In Hiding
Detention
Generalist

7
19

9
25

House Raided
Detention
Generalist

7
11

14
27

Detention Centre – Australia
Detention
100
Generalist
19

100
30

Internal Displacement
Detention
Generalist

11
15

7
19

Kidnapping
Detention
Generalist

5
4

6
8

Legally Sentenced – Prison Term
Detention
0
Generalist
1

0
3

Lack of Food or Water
Detention
Generalist

7
23

3
26

Solitary Confinement
Detention
Generalist

0
3

7
13

Lack of Shelter
Detention
Generalist

7
20

3
23

Subject to Mock Executions
Detention
Generalist

0
6

2
11

Any of: Damage to Teeth, Electric
Shock,Genital Mutilation, Other
Detention
11
Generalist
6
Sexual Assault other than Rape
Detention
0
Generalist
0
Under Combat Fire
Detention
Generalist
HARDSHIP	

% frequency at assessment
0–17
YEARS

% frequency at assessment

18+
YEARS

Social Living needs (continued)

0–17
YEARS

n/a
26

n/a
40

Immigration (Sponsorship)
Detention
Generalist

Financial – Other
Detention
Generalist

n/a
22

n/a
36

Major Illness or Handicap in the Family
Detention
7
Generalist
14

Higher Qualifications Not Recognised
Detention
n/a
Generalist
2

n/a
8

Mental Illness
Detention
Generalist

Housing
Detention
Generalist

n/a
33

School Attendance
Detention
Generalist

n/a
29

Summary (illegal) Detention
Detention
Generalist

7
2

11
11

% frequency at assessment

18+
YEARS

Social Living needs (continued)

Financial – Income Support
Detention
Generalist

DETENTION

0–17
YEARS

18+
YEARS

Social Living needs (continued)
Significant Concern for Family Overseas
Detention
66
Generalist
53

56
67

12
19

Since Arrival, Death of a Close Relative
or Friend
Detention
4
Generalist
8

5
11

6
22

10
13

* Percent frequencies refer to
post-detention period

n/a
18

n/a
21

n/a
39

n/a
47
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{{Working with survivors}}

Complementary Therapies Service

T

he Complementary Therapies
(CT) program is a unique service providing Foundation House clients with
access to a range of natural therapies such
as naturopathy, herbal medicine, nutritional
therapy, remedial and therapeutic massage
and yoga. Physiotherapy and shiatsu
therapy are also offered thanks to the generous contribution of qualified volunteers.
Clients are referred to Complementary
Therapies from Foundation House
Counsellor Advocates and Mental Health
Clinic practitioners. Alongside the referrer, CT naturopaths and massage therapists consider health in a holistic manner
which includes the impact on the physical self as a part of the whole self. There
is an acknowledgement that in working
with people of refugee background, the
mind-body connection is part of the focus
in seeking to manage symptoms associated with the effects of torture and trauma.

When Kamali brews the herbs
prescribed by Foundation House
natural therapies practitioners, it creates
a powerful and positive connection to
his childhood.
‘The smell of the tea makes me nostalgic for the mountains where I
grew up,’ Kamali said.
‘In the old days, oils were used
for massage for women who gave
birth and for those who were suffering from joint, muscle and bone
pain. My mother used to make that
oil. The ingredients were the same,
they looked the same, the smell was
the same.’
Of Hazara background, Kamali
was born in Afghanistan, and
moved to Pakistan when he was
eight or nine. He fled Pakistan and
arrived in Australia in 2011, and
was in detention for over a year. He had
had to leave behind his family, but they
were finally able to join him in May this
year, and now he lives with his wife and
three teenage children.
When he first arrived, he struggled with the physical and psychological effects of his experiences, and was
referred to Foundation House by his GP.
He received counseling, and also treatment through the Foundation House
Complementary Therapies program, in
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In the financial year 2012–2013
year Complementary Therapies saw
276 clients in Brunswick, Sunshine,
Dandenong and Ringwood. In May 2013
the CT program were pleased with the appointment of a new team member Ann
Marsh who joined the Sunshine Team.
This increased the natural therapies
service at the Sunshine office to a fulltime presence.
This year the complementary therapies
team also piloted an Iranian men’s yoga
group, focusing on teaching strategies
for managing anxiety, sleep problems
and pain. The participants who regularly
attended reported a marked difference in
their levels of anxiety and better sleep,
even falling asleep within the relaxation
part of the class. Further yoga classes are
planned for the future in the Brunswick
and Dandenong offices as yoga groups
continue to receive positive feedback.

~{ Memories of
		 the mountains }~
Kamali’s story

“The way I have now of
accepting challenges and
meeting new challenges,
I learned at Foundation
House.”

particular massage and herbal medicine.
The massage provided him with short
term relief, and he could take away the

>> Iranian men practise yoga poses with
therapist Jenny Adams.

herbal oils, capsules and teas to use at
home as needed.
Kamali was very keen to express his
appreciation of Foundation House. ‘If
I had not knocked at the Foundation
House door I would have suffered a
lot. Every member of Foundation
House would deal with me in a very
human, polite way,’ he said. ‘The
kind of high valued human behavior, this great attitude that I read
in books and myths, turned into
reality when I met representatives
from this organisation. It is a great
human treasure.’
Kamali has now moved on from
Foundation House and lives interstate. He has completed English language lessons, and assists his family
in adjusting to a new life. He enjoys
studying philosophy and history.
He still faces challenges, but Kamali
said that the combination of services
he received from Foundation House
helped him find strength to deal with
them.
‘The way I have now of accepting
challenges and meeting new challenges,
I learned at Foundation House.’
And he still drinks the tea he discovered,
or rediscovered, in the complementary
therapies room.
‘It gives me serenity,’ he said.
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{{Working with survivors}}

Refugee Mental Health Clinic: 10 years on

F

oundation House Refugee
Mental Health Clinic has celebrated
10 years of providing specialist psychiatric
and psychological services to people from
refugee backgrounds.
The Clinic began in 2003 as a collaborative project between Foundation House
and the Victorian Transcultural Psychiatry
Unit.
Prior to the Clinic, Foundation House
and other organisations had difficulty
finding specialist psychiatric and psychology services that could provide quality care
for refugee clients and survivors of torture.
There was little, if any, funding for them
to attend psychologists in private practice,
and limited service in the public health care
system. Clinicians did not necessarily have
the cross-cultural skills required for work
with refugee clients, and very few had experience in treating of survivors of torture.
The Clinic brought together independent practitioners with specialist experience
in torture and trauma, and sometimes
further specialisations such as adolescent
health, to provide psychopharmacology
and psychotherapy services to Foundation
House clients.

>> Foundation House CEO Paris Aristotle and Direct Services Manager Ida Kaplan
reflect on 10 years of the Refugee Mental Health Clinic, with past and present staff and
professionals engaged with the Clinic.

The initial group of five clinicians
began working in 2003 from the old
Parkville office of Foundation House.
Clinicians now operate across the
Brunswick, Dandenong and Sunshine
premises.
It remains an important part of the
Clinic is that it is ‘nested’ within the full
range of other Foundation House services. Clients of the Clinic can be connected

as appropriate to counselling, advocacy,
natural therapies, medical referral, community capacity building or other programs. This provides a unique, holistic
and flexible model of service.
The needs of other family members are
often identified in the course of providing treatment and these family members
may be linked in to the Clinic or to other
Foundation House services.

Dr. Astrid Dunsis farewelled

T

he Refugee Mental Health Clinic
has farewelled Psychiatrist Dr. Astrid
Dunsis after an association which encompasses the entire history of the clinic. Dr
Dunsis was present at the very first meeting
to plan the formation of Foundation House
in 1987. In 2003, she attended a smaller
meeting to get the Mental Health Clinic off
the ground, and she has been a consulting
psychiatrist at the Clinic from then until retiring in August 2013.
‘I am very pleased I chose to do this at
the end of my career. I have met amazing
people both as patients and colleagues,’ Dr.
Dunsis said. ‘It has broadened my horizons
enormously.’
Over the years she has seen the demographics shift according to changes in
global conflict, and also changes in the
nature of presenting issues. ‘When I started
we saw people from the former Yugoslavia,’
she said. ‘More recently we see people from
Iran, Iraq and Egypt. But we also have seen
people traumatised by periods of detention
within Australia,’ she said.

>> Dr. Astrid Dunsis.

There have also been changes to the
complexity of the politics and the ‘rules’
for refugees and she gives full credit to
the Counsellor Advocates (CA’s) capacity
to work within this landscape. ‘The CAs
are fantastic people, very committed and
knowledgeable,’ she said.

Dr. Dunsis studied medicine at the
University of Western Australia, and chose
to specialise in psychiatry when she came
to Melbourne in 1968. Working as a psychiatrist at the Queen Victoria Hospital
and Monash Medical Centre, she saw
Vietnamese and Cambodian women as part
of her general hospital work, and became
interested in working with refugees.
Dr. Dunsis comes from a refugee background herself—her family fled Latvia after
the Second World War and spent five years
in refugee camps in Germany, eventually
arriving in Australia in 1950.
Though scaling back her clinical work,
Dr. Dunsis intends to continue participating on the Mental Health Review Board,
and examining international medical
graduates for accreditation. She also looks
forward to spending time with her grandsons, and opportunities to travel.
But the association is too long to break
entirely, and Dr. Dunsis has assured us that
she will remain in touch with Foundation
House.
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{{Working with young people and families}}
Over a quarter of all clients attending Foundation House
counseling services are under 21. High percentages of young clients
have experienced traumas such as forced separation from family,
disappearance of family members, threat of harm to their families, and
the witnessing of violence and killings. Many have not known security and
stability until arriving in Australia. Young people arriving as adolescents
can be at particular risk of being marginalized.
Alongside intensive work with individuals, Foundation House supports a
number of projects that work to improve responses to the needs of young
people from refugee background in education and service provision, to
assist with access to employment, and to support making connections
within and across cultures.

When Tesfai Tegail first arrived

Schools Support Program

F

oundation
House
Schools
Support Program works with schools
to enhance the emotional health and
educational outcomes of students from
refugee backgrounds.
In the past year the Schools Team partnered with 32 schools in five networks
spread across metropolitan Melbourne
and Bendigo (see also Supporting Rural
and Regional Schools, page 18) Each of
these schools is working closely with
our School Support Officers to assess
and make changes within a whole school
approach, strengthening each school’s
approach to working with students of
refugee backgrounds and their families.
The Schools Support Program also
continued to provide secondary consultation, and ran professional learning and
development sessions for more than 2500
teachers and support staff in 2012–13.
In addition to the work being undertaken through the school networks, the
Schools Support Program, in partnership
with five schools and five communities,
has embarked on an eighteen month
project to design and document a parent
engagement strategy specific to parents
and carers from refugee backgrounds.
Relationships to Enhance Accessible
Learning (REAL), has created a partnership team of more than 70 people from
participating schools and the Afghan,
Assyrian/Chaldean, Chin, Karen and
South Sudanese Communities. Through
this partnership base, REAL aims to
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design, implement and document a transferable and sustainable model of parent/
carer engagement strengthening the
connection between refugee background
parents/carers and the schools, school
communities and education processes in
which their children are participants.
Working with the Catholic Education
Office Melbourne (CEOM), the Schools
Support Program has also completed a
project detailing ways in which Catholic
schools can best support and engage
families of students from refugee and
migrant backgrounds. The Foundation
House project worker facilitated workshops and professional development for
staff in six clusters to support the engagement of refugee background families with their children’s education. The
project aimed to promote the good practice occurring in schools and support its
progress to common practice.
The final report identifies 20 determinants of effective family engagement
for families of newly arrived and refugee
background. It provides examples where
these practices have been implemented,
and makes practical suggestions for
how schools can enhance their existing
practices.
Resources including a professional
learning time line and an audit exercise
to help schools assess their current level
of engagement with CALD and refugee
background families are also provided.

in Melbourne, he felt ‘like a fish out of the
sea.’ He had been forced to leave his home
in Eritrea, where he had been in his third
year of studying Biology at university.
‘I came from a society with the same
language, with my friends and family,’ he
said. He found himself in ‘a new country,
new society, new area—everything was new
here.’
Tesfai missed his friends and family,
his language and culture. But through
language lessons, he was introduced to
the Foundation House Ucan2 program.
‘We visited different places. We did a lot
of things. It was a lot of fun. The Ucan2
people were like friends for me. They explained all the obstacles that new people
can have here, they motivated me.’
The program has an ongoing relationship with Australia Post, which sponsors
mentoring and employment opportunities for Ucan2 participants. As part of this
program, Tesfai got casual work at Australia
Post and was connected with a mentor,
Josh McLean.
Josh had seen the Ucan2 mentorships
advertised through internal publicity at his
Australia Post workplace. ‘I thought—what
a great idea!’ he said. He found out more
about the program, attended preparatory
workshops, and was introduced to Tesfai.
Josh was a point of contact at Australia
Post, and helped Tesfai with other work
skills such as preparing his CV and writing
job applications. The two also met for social
outings around Melbourne, or just for a
coffee.
Tesfai enjoyed his placement at
Australia Post. ‘It is a very large work area,
a lot of people with different cultures, with
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{{Working with young people and families}}

Ucan2

T

he Ucan2 program recognises
the need to provide additional support
for young people who are newly arrived to
Australia and from a refugee background,
as they make their way through the post
compulsory school, training and tertiary
sectors. The program has been developed
by Foundation House with the specific goal
of increasing education, training and employment opportunities for young refugees.
Ucan2 provides support services to
encourage newly arrived young people to
remain engaged in education and training
whilst following an appropriate pathway

to reach their goals.
In partnership with their English language provider, young people within the
program are provided with educational
case management, a specialised curriculum, and social support and mentoring.
Education, training and employment opportunities are increased by engaging
local networks, businesses, sporting clubs
and the arts in the program.
In the past 12 months, approximately
240 newly arrived young people from
refugee backgrounds undertook Ucan2.
Through the ongoing partnership with

~{ Heart brothers }~
Josh and Tesfai’s story

“It was a lot of fun. The
Ucan2 people were like
friends for me. They
explained all the obstacles
that new people can have
here, they motivated me.”

Being a mentor you have
to be open minded, there
is issue resolution, finding
answers to problems that
I have never had to deal
with before.’

— Tesfai

— Josh

Australia Post, the mentoring component of the program has continued to
grow, and more than 80 employees from
Australia Post, K-Mart and legal firm
Homan Fenwick Willan have been trained
and matched with a young person from
the program.
In August 2013 Ucan2 asked a number
of mentors and mentees to reflect on their
experience of the program. The response
demonstrated clearly the ways that this relationship is “life changing” for both the
young person and their mentor. (See Josh
and Tesfai’s story below).

different language. It is like the whole of
Australia is there! They welcomed us, it
was nice. I was sorting the parcels, it is
not hard.’
Tesfai said having Josh as a mentor
helped him tackle challenges. ‘When he
is beside me I feel confident, if something happened to me I just call him
or send him a message and I ask him.
Because he is beside me I feel confident
and I do things confidently.’
For Josh, the benefits of the program
go both ways. ‘I think it is a great
program for employees at Australia
Post. I think it is good for our development. It’s a good balance to have—
to focus on something at work but
also have something outside of work,
because I apply my learnings from this
program to work and my learnings from
work into this. Being a mentor you have
to be open minded, there is issue resolution, finding answers to problems that I
have never had to deal with before.’
Josh also found the experience broadening for him beyond the work context.
‘It was a good learning experience for
me to get to know him, also his values,
traditions, more about his country and
where he came from, what he did day to
day there, about his family, his two kids,’
he says.
Tesfai has now gone on to full time
work, and Josh is mentoring a new
Ucan2 participant. Though they see each
other a bit less, Tesfai and Josh have
maintained the friendship.
‘I think Tesfai and I will be like heart
brothers moving forward,’ says Josh. ‘I
look forward to growing some more together.’
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{{Working with young people and families}}

Words and music from the Karen community

A

project working with Karen young people and community members has produced a range of creative resources relevant to the community. These include songs
and films produced by the young people, and a resource book to encourage engagement
between younger and older members within the Karen Community.
The activities were an extension of the initial project funded through nib foundation
in 2010, and build on this successful base.

Strengthening Relationships

The aim of the Strengthening Relationships
part of the project was to enhance the relationships between Karen young people
and their parents and elders, and the wider
Karen community. A key component was
the establishment of a working group of
young people and elders to identify activities which could bring the generations together. Ten young people and seven elders
and adults formed the working group,
which was representative of the diversity
within the Karen population itself. A Karen
Project Worker was employed to assist in
supporting the group and resourcing the
activities that emerged from discussions.
Activities to build the group and make
connections included a drama workshop,
an outing to Hanging Rock, and rock
climbing. There were also activities for
the wider community, with a Karen miniOlympics, and a Debate and Trivia Night
attracting around 300 participants at each
event.
Project Worker Thataw Kunoo compiled
some of the experiences and conversations

>> Strengthening relationships events
included a Mini-Olympics (left) and
a community debate.

of the group into a booklet titled ‘Voices
from the Community’. Members of the
Working Group endorsed the booklet as
providing an opportunity to encourage
discussions within families and the wider
community, and endorsing the openness of expression of challenges they face
together.
Comments from the community about
the resource include:
“I will read this booklet and discuss
it with my children and whole family. It
gives me a way to talk to them about it.”
“Some parents are unable to communicate with their children. The booklet is a
good tool for communication.”
“The book is good because it shows
like a balance between young people and
older people. It’s like scales—balanced
on both sides with the voices of older and
young people”

Engaging youth
About 20 Karen youth participated in the
Foundation’s ‘Engaging Youth’ program
to make a series of music videos about
“health and harm minimisation” messages.
Young participants wrote, developed,
sang and recorded four music video clips
depicting the challenges facing young
Karen people, and providing important
health promotion and harm minimisation messages. The ages
of the people
involved
ranged from
15 to 25, with
roughly equal
numbers of
males and females. Industry professionals including a film maker and sound
editor provided technical assistance, and
the finished videos—The Pastor, Bad Son,
Unaccompanied Child, and Get Ready—
were posted on YouTube. As of May 2013,
the clips had a combined total of nearly
3500 views. The DVD: ‘Get Ready: Songs
and Films by Karen Young People’ included the finished products as well as commentary from the participants about how
they were involved.
The work follows an 18-month pilot
project which included the establishment
of the Karen Youth Advisory Committee
(YAC). The committee included participation from Karen young men and women
who were actively involved in their community, young men who had become
disengaged from their community, and
representatives from key local services. Many of the Karen youth involved
in the projects were born and raised in
refugee camps on the Thai-Burma border.
Foundation House coordinator Susie
Strehlow noted that Karen students can
only study to year 10 in refugee
camps. “When people arrive
they have many hopes for their
education but the reality is that
when they get linked to a school
they can find the work difficult
and this creates disappointment. This is such a shame
because they have so many
strengths.”
>>Participants and professionals
working together on the
Engaging Youth project.
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{{Working with young people and families}}

A space to grow: Afghan Young Men’s Group

O

n alternate Thursdays at
Foundation House’s Dandenong
office, the upstairs training room is transformed with rugs, food and music into
a comfortable, safe space, in preparation
for the arrival of the Afghan Young Men’s
Group.
The members of the group are aged from
16 to 19, of Afghan background, and have
all arrived in Australia without immediate
family. They meet fortnightly, or sometimes
more often, to chat, eat, dance, play music,
celebrate cultural events, and participate in
community based art as well as recreational
events and outings. The group provides a
basis from which participants are able to
form relationships and feel a sense of connectedness. This helps them to break out
of the social isolation that so often dominates their lives as unaccompanied minors
in a new country. The group also provides
participants with the opportunity to share

individual and common experiences, and
to access information about relevant services, events, and local opportunities.
The Afghan Young Men’s Group project
began in September 2012. Foundation
House Counselor Advocates, through experience with their own clients and feedback from other agencies, established that
there was a need for a safe, supportive place
for this particular group of young people
who might otherwise be in danger of becoming disengaged and isolated. It had
become evident that in order to respond to
the needs of unaccompanied minors and
accommodate the different ways young
people engage in support, models of counselling needed to be flexible.
The initial pool of young people of
about 25 was drawn from Foundation
House counselling clients. The numbers
have ebbed and flowed over time, but that
is part of the flexible nature of the group

where participants are encouraged, but
not required, to attend. It is deliberately
‘semi-structured’ to lower the barriers for
the young men to engage in much needed
relationship building, psychoeducation,
and mentoring. The group also provides
the grounds to start processing some
of the traumatic experiences the young
people have been through; and the ongoing
stressors of being uncertain when—or
if—they might be reunited with their families, who continue to live in dangerous
circumstances.
As well as providing social support and
information, the group work model assists
the young men recognise their abilities and
skills in areas such as sport and art, and
supports independent living skills. It helps
makes connections between members, and
with Foundation House workers, and together the participants build positive memories and experiences.

‘Unbelievable’: a healing weekend

A

weekend program for the
Afghan young men offered them a
space and time to further develop social
connections with peers and adults, and to
reduce isolation and stress that are predominant features in their day to day lives.
Three Foundation House Counsellor
Advocates together with Mestre Roxinho
(the founder and director of Project Bantu,
a core program used by STARTTS in
NSW), took a group of 11 participants of
the Afghan Young Men’s group program
at Foundation House to Presentation
Family Centre at Balnarring Beach on the
Mornington Peninsula.
The weekend program had a focus on
well-being of mind, body and spirit, and
included structured therapeutic activities
including ‘Capoeira Angola,’ which combines elements of martial arts, music and
dance. Mestre Roxinho works extensively
with refugee young people using this AfroBrazilian art form as a therapeutic tool for
expression and trauma healing. Alongside
these workshops was a weekend filled with
social connection, relaxation and recreation through beach walks and sport, games,
playing musical instruments, singing and
dancing, cooking and sharing of food, conversations, and sharing a ‘home’.
This opportunity was made possible

>> Foundation House Counsellor Advocates with some of the Afghan young men who
attended the weekend workshop at Balnarring.

through Foundation House’s ongoing commitment to therapeutic group work with
unaccompanied minors, together with a
generous philanthropic donation from the
Kiwanis Brighton (Vic) Club.
Feedback from the young men who attended in the days following our return was

very positive and affirming of the benefits
of such a group program.
One of the young men said: “We could
not believe how good it was. We thought we
would just go on a holiday and relax. But we
had no idea that it would be so much more.
It was unbelievable.”
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{{Working with young people and families}}

Supporting parents to deal with the impact
of trauma on their children

T

here are increasing numbers of
families arriving in Australia with children who have been exposed to violence
and traumatic events. Familial support and
parents’ emotional functioning are strong
factors mitigating the development and
duration of trauma symptoms in children,
and enhancing a child’s resilience and capacity to resolve these symptoms.
Recognising this, Foundation House
has developed a program of parent-focused psycho-education. The program
assists parents to understand the nature
of trauma, and to identify how they can
support their children both immediately
and into the future.
Based on demographic trends and subsequent increasing need, the program has
been piloted in Assyrian/Chaldean and
Chin communities. The past year has seen
an increase in parents and children arriving from Syria, notably families of Assyrian
and Chaldean backgrounds, who have been
exposed to the fighting and civil war in Syria
after having fled there from Iraq. There has
also been an increase in families of Chin
background where children and young
people are arriving without their parents,
and being cared for by extended family.
The program was tailored to the
needs of the two different communities. For Assyrian and Chaldean parents,
Foundation House developed a two
session model for delivery of information,
and ran three of these programs to newly
arrived parents.
The Chin program began with a three
group session for young people, based at
their English language school. Parents and
caregivers were then invited to attend two
later sessions. The parents’ sessions incorporated feedback about the topics covered
in the students’ program, without identifying particular responses.
The strength of the model is its capacity to provide an opportunity for parents to
recognise and normalise their children’s
behaviour as a response to what they have
been through, and also to access strategies
that they can implement in their daily lives
to support their children.
The group session also provided parents
with the opportunity of realising that others
share similar concerns.
Feedback has been overwhelmingly
positive. Participants have indicated that
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they have valued the opportunity to share
their concerns for their children while also
acknowledging the impact of their own exposure to traumatic events.

The program also helps develop knowledge and trust in Foundation House as a
point of contact if they have ongoing concerns for their children.

The Service Literacy Strategy

O

ver the past 12 months the
Service Innovation Program (SIP) has
been developing a model to increase the
participation rates of families and individuals from particular communities in mainstream services.
SIP is currently working with community consultants from the Afghan and
Assyrian/Chaldean communities, along
with a number of pre-natal and relationship
counseling services, with a view to increasing support, service provision and engagement for these communities.

Community consultants are professionally employed on a casual basis to
design processes in partnership with
the relevant services. The aim is to build
a knowledge base of specific services
across participating communities; and
to enhance capability within those services to provide culturally relevant and
informed programs.
The Service Literacy Strategy is supported by the Hugh Williamson Foundation
and Portland House Foundation, both long
term supporters of Foundation House.

>> Service Literacy – opening doors between services and communities.
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{{Our organisation}}
Quentin Buckle
Study Grants

T

he Quentin Buckle Study
Grants help to financially support
people from a refugee background in education or training in their chosen field.
The grants program was established in
2007 in honour of founding Victorian
Foundation for Survivors of Torture committee member and human rights advocate Quentin Buckle. It commemorates
his lifelong commitment to human rights,
community, social justice and advocacy.
Recipients were presented with their
awards by the Minister for Health, The
Hon. David Davis mp, at the Foundation
House end of 2012 celebration.
The following students received grants
in 2012:
• Ms Alham Abadiyan is 20 years old
and comes from Afghanistan, having
arrived in Australia in 2009. She was
the first Ucan2 participant to receive the
grant which is assisting her with her
studies in Interior Design at RMIT in
2013.
• Ms Baneen Huseini is 18, and originally
from Iraq. The Award will assist
towards her plans for studying Nursing.
• Mr Ali Reza Izadi and Ms. Shima Izadi
are brother and sister from Iran, having
arrived in Australia in 2010. Both used
the funds to assist with their Biomedical
Science degrees at Victoria University.
• Mr Zakariye Jimale is 19, from
Somalia, and arrived here in 2008.
He is studying Foundation Studies
for Engineering, and the grant will
support his aim to study Engineering at
Bachelor level.
• Mr Mukhtar Hussain Nazari is the
youngest recipient at 16. He is is from
Afghanistan and arrived in Australia in
2011. He used the grant to assist with
his VCE studies.
• Ms Justine Korpoi is 48, and from
Sierra Leone. She came to Australia in
2005, and is studying Nursing.
The Quentin Buckle Study Grant is supported by Portland House, and administered by Foundation House.
Additional donations for this year’s
Grants came from Presbyterian Ladies’
College and St Monica College.
We would also like to thank Derrimut

>> Health Minister David Davis presented the 2012 Quentin Buckle Study Grants to this year’s
hard working recipients. Foundation House Chair Lynne Haultain is on the right.

Primary School, who donated funds just
after the end of the Financial Year. Their

contribution will go towards next year’s
grants.

The quest for Global Justice:
Foundation House 2013 Oration

P

rofessor
Tim
McCormack
began the 2013 Oration, titled ‘What
prospects for the pursuit of Global
Justice?’, by drawing parallels between
The International Criminal Court and
Foundation House. Though the two very
different organisations might not seem immediately comparable, he noted that both
‘focus not on the depressing darkness and
gloom which so readily overwhelms, but on
how we respond to that in a positive and a
constructive way, which enables those who
have suffered, hopefully to move on with
their lives.’
Professor McCormack is the Special
Advisor on International Humanitarian
Law to the Prosecutor of the International
Criminal Court in The Hague, and
Professor of Law at the Melbourne Law
School. He drew on his wealth of experience in international humanitarian and
criminal law to discuss the work of the
International Criminal Court. Despite the
grim subject matter he spoke with hope
and often with humour, as he reflected on
the history and considerable challenges of

>> Professor Tim McCormack delivers the
Foundation House Oration.

attempts to bring violators of human rights
to international justice.
The Oration is a keynote speech
on topical issues, hosted each year by
Foundation House. The speech, delivered on 26 June 2013 to commemorate
the United Nations International Day in
Support of Victims of Torture, can be heard
in full on the Foundation House website:
www.foundationhouse.org.au
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{{Working with adults}}
Foundation House works with adults and older people as individual
clients and through group work and capacity building.
Adults (over 18) make up the bulk of Foundation House direct
services clients, and within this group is a vast range of individual
stories and backgrounds.
Older people or elders from refugee backgrounds may present
with particular issues, needs, and experiences. They may have a
range of complex health needs where normal ageing processes are
impacted by experience of hardship or torture, or may struggle with
adjusting to the different cultural roles expected of older people in
a new country. Within any community, there may be disconnections
across age groups (see the Karen project to connect older and
younger people, on page 12).
Older people may have need for specific information related to aging such
as health services and funeral arrangements. In communities that have been
established in Australia for a long time,
there may be people who only find the
capacity to engage with the trauma of
their earlier life in their middle or later
years, once the practicalities of home
and financial security are established.
Bringing together groups of people
from similar background provides the

opportunity to address common concerns, but also can provide support,
connection and affirmation for the
participants. The groups often develop
a life of their own beyond the original
project.
Improving English language skills
can also be a priority for adults and
older people, and Foundation House
is also fortunate to have a dedicated
group of volunteers enabling us to
provide English language lessons.

>> Through the services of our committed volunteers, Foundation House continues to
offer English language classes at our Brunswick office. Here, a class enjoys a well-earned
lunchtime break in the Foundation House garden. Many thanks to our English language
volunteers: Margaret Wehl, Helen Hanrahan, Anne Hayman, Leonie Ball and Jenny Little.

Cambodian
Women’s Group

T

he Cambodian Women’s group
began with a small but emerging presence of clients within Foundation House
counselling services. Though Cambodians
are one of Victoria’s longer-established
refugee communities, having had a presence here for 30 years, in the early years of
settlement few were ready to engage with
counselling for trauma.
A few years ago, though, Foundation
House counsellors found that many
Cambodians were more ready to engage
with their past experience of torture,
trauma, loss and grief. For some, the sense
of having finally ticked some of the settlement goals of education, employment or
home ownership allowed them to move on.
For others experiences such as motherhood
triggered memories of their own childhood.
In 2009 Foundation House developed
a group work program specifically for
Cambodians. Most were long term residents, of ten to twenty years, and all had
lived through the Pol Pot regime. Many of
the women had been widowed during the
Pol Pot Regime and others had lost their
husbands to ill health or marital conflict.
The group worked within a framework of
both intentional reflection on the past, and
considerations for the present, and included
work on managing disturbing memories,
understanding and managing anxiety and
depression, managing current family dynamics, and working with body in terms of
physical pain and psychological symptoms.
The group no longer operates on a formal
model, but meets fortnightly to share their
experiences and maintain these important connections. The group is facilitated
by Jasmina Mulugeta and by Cambodian
Bicultural Facilitator Nary Sam, whose life
experience and bilingual/bicultural skills
have been critical to the group’s development.

Assyrian Chaldean Women’s Group

T

he Assyrian Chaldean Women’s
Friendship Group has become an
important social support for participants
many of whom have lost their partners as
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a result of war, and are without extended
families in Australia. The group meets fortnightly to discuss issues such as grief and
loss, parenting, relationships, budgeting,

health, and wellbeing. It is facilitated by
the Foundation House Assyrian Chaldean
community liaison worker, and Anglicare
Broadmeadows.
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C

about opportunities to undertake
hin and Karen Elders
volunteer work and been linked
have often played leadership
to multiple local and council serroles within their communivices, as well as having a focus on
ties prior to arrival in Australia.
elders from the Chin
health and the impact of trauma.
Resettlement in a new country
and Karen communities
The Chin Elders Group brings
can leave them feeling a loss of
together approximately
role and status. Together
sixteen male Elders from
with the lack of employacross the very diverse Chin
ment opportunities for older
community—reflecting the
people, this can make them
seven different Chin dialects
vulnerable to depression and
spoken, and the different
a loss of hope.
religious denominations to
In response to these
which members are affiliatneeds, identified through ined. It is the only opportunity
dividual case work in 2012members have to communi13, the Foundation House
cate with each other across
Capacity Building Team
these groups.
has had a strong focus on
Like the Karen, the group
working with and supporting
has had a strong focus on exElders from both the Chin
ploring opportunities for voland Karen communities.
unteering, and been linked
Groups were established to
to Brimbank Council, with
support older community
members successfully achievmembers who were feeling
ing volunteer positions.
isolated and disconnected
>> The Chin Elders Group (pictured here with
Further linking to local services
from the community in a new
Foundation House staff) provides an opportunity to
has included the Men’s Shed, the
and very different country.
communicate across different dialect and religious
local community garden, as well
The Karen Elders and Exgroups within the community.
as supporting them to access local
Combatants Group is a mixed
recreational opportunities such as
group of twenty-four older
swimming and lawn bowls. The
Karen, who share a history of
group has also chosen to focus on
involvement in the struggle for
freedom in Karen State in Burma. They establishing its own direction and priori- a sharing of their stories, which has been a
meet monthly, supported by the Karen ties. A strong focus has been on sharing powerful tool for building connection, trust
Community Liaison Workers, Chitlu Wyn the stories and histories of individual group and an acknowledgement of the past and
and Reginald Shwe, and CaB Team Co- members, and a sub-working group has the important role they played in their trouOrdinator, Susie Strehlow. Members come identified this as a primary project for the bled country.
This group has been facilitated by
from a number of suburbs and reflect group in the future. This sub-group aims
the diverse religious affiliations of the to document the individual stories and the Community Liaison Workers, Andrew
community.
history group members played a part in. Kalon and Thomas Mung, together with
The group has been involved in The group has also focused on learning Team Co-ordinator, Susie Strehlow.

~{ A new respect }~

Strength to strength: Bhutanese Seniors

T

he Bhutanese Seniors Group
now meeting regularly in the Glenroy
Senior Citizens Centre had its origins with
individual clients of Foundation House.
From this base Counsellor Advocate
Giovanna Citta established connections
with other Bhutanese older people who
were isolated at home with little chance for
interaction.
‘Foundation House provided a trusted
connection,’ said Giovanna. ‘We were in a
position to link them to other services.’
An initial group of twenty older people
formed the group. Most had been in
refugee camps in Nepal, some for up to

25 years, and in general they had been in
Australia for one to three years. Some came
as part of a family, but some had family still
in camps.
As older people, they had particular
needs and interests. Many were anxious
about how to meet their cultural and religious requirements for funerals in this
country and were reassured by information
sessions attended by local funeral directors, along with a visit to a crematorium.
Hot baths had been part of their traditions,
and they enjoyed trips to hot springs in
the Mornington Peninsula. Excursions to
Apollo Bay inland to the Otways reminded

some of the scenery of the mountains of
Bhutan.
The group was also connected with local
councils, community health centres, and
health assessment teams.
After the initial support from Foundation
House, the group is now self-sufficient.
Many of its members, though, maintain a
connection to Foundation House through
committed attendance at our English language classes.
The success of the group has been an
inspiration for some of the other work
Foundation House is undertaking with
older people.
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{{Working in rural and regional areas}}
Rural and Regional Services
In 2012-13 there continued to be significant settlement in rural
and regional Victoria, with 15% of newly arriving humanitarian
entrants, or those granted permanent protection visas, settled in
these areas. Many asylum seekers have also found their way to
rural and regional Victoria, including those in community detention
and on Bridging Visa E.
The most significant numbers of people settled in Geelong,
Shepparton and Mildura and Foundation House was very pleased
to be able to roll-out a mental health funded pilot program in these
three areas in 2012–13. In Shepparton and Geelong this new
funding provided capacity to engage bi-cultural workers, providing the
opportunity for a greater focus on group work and community based
interventions (see the Afghan Men’s Cooking Group next page). This
funding also provided additional Counsellor Advocacy capacity across
the three regional centres. The 2013-14 budget announcement by
Hon Mary Wooldridge of continued funding for these services over
the next four years was very welcome.
In 2012-13 we partnered with the
following agencies to provide torture
and trauma counselling services in rural
and regional Victoria:
• Ballarat Community Health Centre
• Bendigo Community Health Services
• Glastonbury Community Services in
Geelong
• Latrobe Community Health Service in
the Latrobe Valley
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• Primary Care Connect in Shepparton
• Sunraysia Community Health
Services in Mildura
• Swan Hill District Health
In addition, we have worked in a
number of other rural and regional
centres with significant refugee
background populations, including
Nhill and Wodonga.

Supporting Rural
and Regional
Schools

F

oundation House Schools’ work (see
page 10) operates in rural and regional
areas as well as metropolitan locations. With
the settlement of families of refugee background in Bendigo, we are pleased that the
Schools’ Refugee Education Support Program
(RESP) is currently operating in Bendigo and
that seven enthusiastic schools have joined the
program. Bendigo schools continue to seek
ways to support the growing enrolment of
Karen students and, in 2013, the enrolment of
students from Afghanistan and Iran.
Many of the schools involved in ‘RESP
Bendigo’ present a well established well-being base for their work, which is evidenced
in their will to include, support and encourage their newly arrived students of refugee
background. Current commitment to building capacity for such work sees schools endeavouring to create supportive enrolment
and transition policies and practice, to
develop skill in the use of interpreters, and
to develop empowering communication
processes with the newly arrived families.
The Bendigo schools’ Refugee Action Teams
support and encourage each other at RESP
Professional Learning and Workshop days
which are held at DEECD in Bendigo. In
working with the Bendigo schools to build a
whole school approach to supporting refugee
background students and their families, our
Foundation House Schools Team is working
alongside the Education Department
(DEECD) and the Centre for Multicultural
Youth.
One of our Service Innovation Programs
current projects, “Relationships Enhancing
Access to Learning” (R.E.A.L.), is also being
piloted in Regional Victoria with Liddiard
Road Primary School Traralgon being one
of the five schools invited to participate.
The Project is designed to support Parent
Engagement in students’ learning, and build
stronger partnerships with schools and
families. In Traralgon, this is involving the
Southern Sudanese Community. Liddiard
Road PS was a participating school in the first
Regional Refugee Action Network (Latrobe
Valley RAN) in 2009-10 and has responded
positively to working with us again through
the R.E.A.L. Project in 2013.
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~{ Much more than cooking }~
The Geelong Afghan Men’s Group

W

‘I think the men now apprecihen bicultural
“While we were waiting for the food to cook,
ate what their daughters and
worker Vajiheh Mohseni
there was talking and singing, little jokes”
wives have been doing!’
began her cooking group for
Vajiheh laughs.
Afghan men in Geelong, even
Word spread, and more
she was surprised at the range
men wanted to join the group
of positive responses.
‘It was very much more than cooking!’ of their families and mothers, and of their than there was room for in the tiny kitchen.
After the two original sets of classes, there
traditional celebrations.
she said.
‘While we were waiting for the food to was enough demand for Vajiheh to run the
Vajiheh is funded by Foundation
House for two days a week at Geelong’s cook, there was talking and singing, little program again, and she is now looking at
jokes,’ said Vajiheh. There were exchang- further groups, perhaps for other demoGlastonbury Community Service.
She began the cooking classes partly es of stories, and people brought along graphics such as young women.
Vajiheh’s innovative approach also inout of concern that a lack of food prepa- puzzles and poems.
The group ran from a small kitchen at cludes organising a program in Afghani
ration skills was leading to digestive
and nutritional problems for the men. Diversitat, a large settlement service which community languages with the Geelong
Participants were men she had worked had the benefit of being familiar to the community radio station, 94.7fm. She felt
with, or who were referred from settle- participants. However, there was no room this was an important means of connecting
ment workers. There was a mix of older for the men to sit and eat, and Vajiheh ini- to the community, especially to people who
tially expected the men would take the food were not literate, or were housebound.
and younger men.
The counselling team at Glastonbury
‘I tried to pick up people who were other- home with them. But rather than eat alone,
wise at home all day,’ said Vajiheh, based on they preferred to stand around the kitchen say that Vajiheh is a wonderful resource
in terms of understanding Afghan culture,
her experience that people unable to work so they could eat together.
Snezana Krstic, CALD Team Leader and for engaging vulnerable clients, as the
or attend classes were at the highest risk of
of Torture and Trauma Counselling at Afghani community in Greater Geelong
becoming disengaged and depressed.
Vajiheh’s mother was called in to assist, Glastonbury, said: ‘Some people wonder continues to grow.
The impact of this work on mental health
and the program was planned to run with a how cooking is related to mental health.
But the group became a favourite gathering has been formally recognised, with Vajiheh
small group of six to eight.
Not only were the participants highly place for men who felt a bond and camara- being nominated for a 2013 Barwon Mental
enthusiastic about learning cooking skills, derie with others in similar circumstances. Health Week Wellbeing Awards. She has
but a range of other benefits soon emerged. There was laughter, joy and feelings of also received an award for her work from
the Afghan community itself, in recogniThe smells and flavours of traditional belonging.’
There were other unexpected benefits. tion of her contribution.
dishes were powerful reminders of home,
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{{Promoting responsive services}}
In 1987, John Gibson put pen to paper—literally—to sketch
a detailed plan for the establishment of a new agency to assist
survivors of torture living in Victoria. One of the functions he
identified was “sensitisation of mainstream services” to the
particular needs of this population. John’s document is now on
display at our Brunswick office, in a room named in his honour after
his death in 2012.
True to the ideas of John and his
fellow founders who made the vision a
reality, promoting the development and
implementation of policies, programs and
services that are responsive to the needs of
survivors of torture has been a core activity
since Foundation House was established.
Spirit is stronger than force, which we
published in 1993, identified “Public
advocacy” as a key service, which it described as follows: “Workers at the
Foundation consult with and lobby governments and other agencies to achieve
the sort of changes that are necessary to
cater for the needs of survivors of torture
and trauma.” Today, one of our guiding
principles states that while the agency is
not politically aligned, “VFST will advocate for policies that promote the health,

wellbeing and human rights of refugees
and asylum seekers…”
Our activities to ensure responsive and
effective public policies and mainstream
services are undertaken in a variety of
ways and contexts including:
• Research and policy work
• Offering learning and professional
development to the broader sector
• Supporting the Refugee Health
Network
• Counsellor Advocates’ representations
to services, to assist clients with
concerns such as housing and welfare
(pp. 4-7)
• The Schools Program (p.10)
• Health Sector development (pp.22-24)
• Membership of advisory bodies by
CEO Paris Aristotle and other staff.

Advisory Boards

The Refugee Resettlement Advisory
Council
The Refugee Resettlement Advisory
Council (RRAC) is a ministeriallyappointed body that provides advice to the
government on refugee and humanitarian
settlement.
Foundation House has been
represented by Paris Aristotle.

The Forum of
Australian Services
for Survivors of
Torture and Trauma
(FASSTT) is the
national network
of organisations
such as Foundation
House which work
with survivors of
torture.
This year FASSTT
produced a poster to
celebrate Australia’s
support for, and
contribution to,
the United Nations
Convention Against
Torture. The poster also aims to focus
public awareness on broad refugee
human rights issues and to sharpen
focus on the moral issue of the right to
rehabilitation.
Copies are available from
Foundation House, or from Paula
Peterson, National Coordinator of
FASSTT at paulapeterson@qpastt.org.
au, or phone 07 33916677.

The Migration Review Tribunal –
Refugee Review Tribunal Community
Foundation House staff provides expertise
Liaison program
to a number of Advisory Boards:
The Migration Review Tribunal (MRT) and
Refugee Review Tribunal (RRT) provide
Minister’s Council on Asylum Seekers
final merits review of visa decisions made
and Detention
by the Department of Immigration and
MCASD is an advisory council to the
Citizenship. The Community Liaison
Minister for Immigration which provides
program is a forum for information
advice on immigration status for people
distribution and discussion about the
seeking migration to Australia.
Onshore Protection Consultative Group
processes, caseloads, relevant legislative
Foundation House Director Paris
This group was established by the
and other developments of the tribunals.
Aristotle chairs this Council.
Department of Immigration and
Foundation House has been
Citizenship in 2008 to engage key external
Police and Community Multicultural
represented by Ida Kaplan.
stakeholders in the development and
Advisory Committee (PACMAC)
improvement of processes and procedures Multicultural Advisory Committee for
PACMAC acts as an advisory body
relating to onshore protection in Australia. Centrelink staff
to Victoria Police, government and
Foundation House has been
the community on issues relating to
Foundation House has been represented
represented by Paris Aristotle and Josef
multiculturalism and to contribute to
by Roslyn Leary.
Szwarc.
the promotion and maintenance of
Dept. of Health Victorian refugee health
harmonious relations between police and
Department of Human Services Refugee and wellbeing strategy advisory group
multicultural communities.
Minor Program Reference Group
Foundation House has been represented
During the past year Foundation House
by Sue Casey.
Foundation House has been represented
has been represented by Ida Kaplan and
by Roslyn Leary.
Mardi Stow successively.
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{{Promoting responsive services}}

Policy and research

R

esearch has been an important
tool to assemble evidence about barriers to, and facilitators of, accessible and
responsive services which can be used to
support our policy work.
Foundation House research activities
were given a major boost in 2008 when the
Sidney Myer Fund and William Buckland
Foundation provided major grants over
five years for Foundation House to establish a refugee health and social wellbeing
research program. The main objectives of
the work for which the grants were made
included provide evidence-based research

for the planning and development of
Foundation House and mainstream services that improve the outcomes of refugee
children, young people and their families, and assisting mainstream services
to improve their services for people of
refugee backgrounds.
The funding allowed Foundation
House to establish its Research and Policy
Program which has undertaken a range
of projects, a number in partnership with
external parties. The major projects undertaken during 2012-2013 are detailed in the
following pages.

Young people
accessing mental
health services:
Project TYRES

E

Having a baby in a new country

T

he project Having a baby in a new
country: the experience of Afghan families was undertaken because there is little
evidence available about the experiences
and expectations of women and men from
refugee backgrounds at the time of having
a baby in Australia. The project is a partnership between Foundation House and
Murdoch Childrens Research Institute.
We decided to focus on one community, those of Afghan origin, because it
was a relatively small study and we were
mindful that the important issues affecting parents include cultural and faith
background and social context. A much
larger project would be required to explore
in detail the experiences of parents from

multiple groups.
The project had three components:
• Consultation with Afghan women and
men to give them an opportunity to
shape the research;
• interviews with Afghan women and
men who had recently had a baby in
Australia; and
• interviews with local health
professionals about their experiences
of working with people of refugee
backgrounds and how services do, and
might, respond to any challenges that
arise.
A report of the study is being finalised
and the findings will be widely disseminated in 2013-2014.

vidence suggests that young
people from refugee backgrounds use
mental health services at a lower rate than
other young people, although their need
for such services may be as great or greater.
While researchers have put forth possible
reasons for these barriers to service utilisation, there have been no systematic studies
asking young service users from refugee
backgrounds about their experiences of
seeing mental health professionals.
Project TYRES—“Talking with Young
Refugees about Experiences of Services”—
aims to give voice to young people about
their experiences of services. Sixteen indepth interviews have been conducted
with young people of diverse backgrounds,
seeking their views about pathways to care
and the barriers and facilitators to accessing
services and engaging with professionals.
The young people spoke insightfully
about a range of issues including their
pre-conceptions about talking to a mental
health practitioner, as captured in this
comment:
“At first I was afraid and in shock, and
like ‘why I go to the counsellor’ because,
you know, in my country just the crazies
[laughing] went … I was asking myself, ‘did
I crazy, am I crazy?!’ … I was un-believe that
I will talk! … when I talk to her I feel confident, directly, at the first day. And I’ve been
talking, talking for two hours without stop,
like I’m booming, booming ...Booming
like a boom! ... actually it was really good,
because I find someone to listen”.
The findings suggest that there are both
areas of similarity and difference with the
way services are experienced by non-refugee youth.
The findings are being documented and
communicated to policy makers, service
providers and health professionals.
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{{Promoting responsive services}}
Research partnerships
A number of research projects have
been undertaken in partnership with
other institutions, in particular:

Promoting the engagement of interpreters
in Victorian Health Services

Accessing maternal and child health
services
This project was undertaken with staff
of the Jack Brockhoff Child Health and
Wellbeing Program, The McCaughey
Centre, The University of Melbourne –
in particular Dr Elisha Riggs, Dr Elise
Davis, Dr Lisa Gibbs, Karen Block and
Professor Elizabeth Waters.
Having a baby in a new country
This project was undertaken with staff
of the Healthy Mothers Healthy Families
Research Group, Murdoch Childrens
Research Institute, in particular Dr Jane
Yelland, Dr Elisha Riggs, Sayed Wahidi,
Fatema Fouladi and Associate Professor
Stephanie Brown.
Tracking the wellbeing, worries and
coping styles of children and young
people from refugee backgrounds
This project was undertaken with staff
of the School of Psychological Sciences,
Associate Professor Jeanette Lawrence
and Ms Amy Collard.
Foundation House is also a partner in
two studies led by other institutions:
• Bridging the Gap – a study designed
to build organisational and system
capacity to address identified gaps and
inequities in maternal and child health
care for refugee families. The study is
led by Murdoch Childrens Research
Institute and partner organisations
include: Southern Health, Sunshine
Hospital, Maternal and Child Health
services in the Cities of Greater
Dandenong and Wyndham, Medicare
Locals in each region and the Victorian
Department of Health. The project has
received a National Health and Medical
Research Council grant.
• Project Ripple – development,
implementation and evaluation of
a mental health intervention that
supports carers in providing consistent
and high quality psychosocial care for
young people living in out of home
care. The project is led by Orygen
Youth Health and the partners include
Royal Childrens Hospital, the Youth
Support and Advocacy Service, Take
Two, Centre for Multicultural Youth
and the Victorian Aboriginal Child
Care Agency.
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T

he Foundation House research
report Promoting the Engagement of
Interpreters in Victorian Health Services
was launched on 25 June 2013.
The research arose from an awareness
among refugee health workers of the disjunction between the high importance of
clear communication in medical settings,
and the limited use of interpreting services
within these settings.
The study examined a range of evidence
about the barriers to, and facilitators of, the
engagement of interpreters as experienced
by the health sector and its practitioners.
The report makes a series of recommendations which include:
• A number of standards, policies and
laws need strengthening to reflect
contemporary practice and risk profiles.
• There is a need for access to fee-free
interpreting for Commonwealth funded
programs under MBS, and the recently
introduced Dental Health Reform
package.
• Shortfalls in interpreter funding for state
funded services need to be made up.
• Funding for interpreting services
needs to be made sustainable. All new
funding for state government services
should account for the need to include
commensurate interpreting dollars. In
relation to hospital funding, the report
recommends that the new Independent
Hospital Pricing Authority national
pricing formula (National Efficient Price)
take account of interpreting services
provision.
• Further investment in service
efficiency and effectiveness by state
government and hospitals, including:
interpreter service delivery models;
areas of unpredictable demand such

>> The Report was launched by Adjunct
Professor John Murtagh at Foundation
House on 25 June 2013. L-R – Health
Sector Development Manager Sue Casey,
Policy and Research Officer Rachel
Vanstone, Professor Murtagh, and Policy
and Research Manager Jo Szwarc.

as Emergency Departments; trialling
service improvements; and further study
into the benefits of effective interpreter
use.
• Exploring potential areas for
development such as telehealth or
other videoconferencing to provide
a mechanism for better access to
interpreters in both metropolitan and
rural and regional Victoria, potentially as
an alternative to face to face interpreting
in some settings.
• Education of health professionals in use
of interpreters. Currently only around
50% of entry level qualifications provide
training for health professionals in
working with interpreters when seeing
clients with low English proficiency.
A key recommendation of this report is
that the Commonwealth Government
should lead a broad review to ensure that
Australia has an interpreting and translating workforce and industry to sustainably
meet current and projected requirements
for language services in key areas of government responsibility. The Victorian
Government has done substantial work in
this area, but a number of the inter-related
issues require a national lens, to which
Victoria is well placed to make a fundamental contribution.
The report is available from our
website www.foundationhouse.org.au under
Resources.
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Victorian Refugee Health Network

T

he Victorian Refugee Health
Network is auspiced by Foundation
House, and provides a unique forum to
bring together primary and specialist services, government departments, settlement and asylum seeker
support agencies to identify and address refugee
and asylum seeker health
issues. We are very pleased
with the announcement
by the Hon David Davis,
Victorian Minister for
Health, in the 2013–14 State
Budget of funding over the
next four years to support
the work of the Network .
The work of the Network
is guided by a Reference Group. This
year, Lenora Lippmann, General Practice
Victoria, resigned from the position
of chair. We thank Lenora for her wise
guidance as Chair since March 2011.
We welcomed Dr Georgia Paxton, Head
Immigrant Health, Royal Children’s
Hospital as the new Network Chair.
Georgia is a leader in paediatric refugee
health in Australia.
A key focus of the year was working
with health and case work support services to provide an integrated response to the
health needs of asylum seekers being released from detention. This included: the
production of resources for health services
about various entitlements, bringing together health service providers to problem
solve, and the introduction of an Asylum
Seeker Health Orientation and Triage
program for people being released from
detention on Bridging Visas to the North
West Metropolitan Region of Melbourne
(see next page).
The Network has provided advice to the
Hon David Davis and the Department of
Health in the development of a refugee
health strategy.
Other activity in the year included:
• The Primary Care working group
considered a range of issues, including
preparation of resources on postpolio syndrome and provided advice
to Medicare Locals for population
planning
• Sexual & Reproductive Health project
work continued with partners Centre for
Ethnicity & Health and Family Planning
Victoria
• Partnerships in the research project

Having a baby in a new country (with
Murdoch Children’s Research Institute)
(see page 22)
• The successful launch of Promoting the
engagement of interpreters in Victorian
health services, (see
page 22) and follow
up of the report’s
recommendations,
including convening two
roundtables with key
stakeholders in March
and August 2013
• Further work was
undertaken to progress
the Refugee Oral
Health Model of Care in

•
•

•

•

•

partnership with Dental Health Services
Victoria;
Partnership with Hepatitis B Alliance to
produce a fact sheet on Hepatitis B
Hosting a face to face meeting of the
Refugee Health Network of Australia
(RHeaNA)
Growing the popularity of our website,
which provides key health information
to the refugee health sector. In June
2013 there were an average of 245
visitors per day
Delivering a high quality monthly
e-bulletin directly to the mailbox of 750
subscribers.
Hosting students from La Trobe
University and Deakin University.

Learning and Professional Development
Program

2

012-13 has been another busy year
for the Learning and Professional
Development program, with 5247 participants from education, health and community services attending 243 sessions.
The Learning and Professional
Development program has developed
over many years and gone from strength
to strength. We now have on-line bookings and a number of other back of
house functions leading to greater efficiencies. There has been a greater emphasis on one, two and sometimes three
day programs, this has provided the opportunity to focus on both organisational change as well as professional skills
development.
Some highlights of the year include:
• A second three day course for oral
health services, this time with Southern
Health, this complements broader work
with Dental Health Services Victoria in
developing a model of care for refugees
and asylum seekers. We also undertook
some professional development with
the outreach services at the Australian
College of Optometry;
• A partnership with Australian Red
Cross to deliver training for their
caseworkers on the impact of torture
and other forms of trauma;
• A two day course for counsellors, with
Casey-Cardinia community health
counsellors—a similar course is being

run with community health counsellors
in the North & West in 2013-14;
• An increasing number of requests
for professional development from
agencies that are working with young
people who are homeless;
• Continuing our very successful
professional development series for
Nurses, and the continuation of the
post-graduate nursing unit in refugee
health at Monash University;
• Provision of professional development
for Melaleuca staff in Darwin. In
2013-14 we have had requests from two
other FASTT agencies in Queensland
and Canberra.
• Continued focus on training for mental
health services. VFST has entered into
a Memorandum of Understanding
with Royal Children’s Hospital Mental
Health Services to consider ways of
improving service access to refugee
background children and their families,
and is working with Monash Early in
Life Mental Health Services to deliver
professional development to youth
services in the Dandenong area;
• We continue our commitment to
provide training for volunteers in a
number of settings.
In late 2013, we are planning a program
review to help set the directions for
further program development in 2014 and
beyond.
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{{Promoting responsive services}}

O

~{ Partnerships in action }~

people being released from detenver 850 asylum seekers
H e a lt h O r i e n tat i o n
tion and seeking services from
recently released from dethe Doveton Clinic. The demand
tention have attended the Health
a n d  T r i a g e P r o g r a m
for services was such that a new
Orientation & Triage (HOT) sesmodel needed to be
sions in the North and
developed.
West of Melbourne. These
The Reference Group
sessions provide particiof the Victorian Refugee
pants with the opportunity
Health Network, based at
to learn about the Victorian
Foundation House, had
health system, and to be readvice from case work
ferred to appropriate health
support agencies that
services where necessary.
many clients were living
The program was iniin the North and West
tially led by the Statewide
Metropolitan Melbourne,
Refugee Health Nurse
particularly in the early
facilitator, supported by
period following release
Refugee Health Nurses
from
detention.
The
from Western Region
Network initiated discusHealth Centre, Doutta
sions on a similar service
Galla Community Health
for the north and west.
Service, ISIS primary
A formal partnership
care, Dianella and Darebin
was established, initially
Community
Health
>> Partners (from left to right) Jamad Hersi, Admin Assistant
with Red Cross and Community
service, and the Victorian Refugee
Health Orientation and Triage project, Lindy Marlow, State
Health Services, and now also
Health Network project worker,
Wide Refugee Nurses Coordinator, Kim McGuiness, Refugee
with AMES. Northern Melbourne
and was organised in partnership
Health Nurse ISIS Community Health, Bernice Murphy,
Medicare Local and Inner North
with the Red Cross. The program
Coordinator Health Orientation Triage project.
West
Melbourne
Medicare
therefore provides an example of
Local provided funding for Coa number of different agencies
working successfully together to meet a immediate referral. Health information ses- ordination and Administrative support for a
clear need.
sions are delivered with interpreters in rel- period of six months—this role has been unThe Health Orientation and Triage ses- evant languages. The need for this sort of dertaken by Western Region Health Centre.
The program needed to adapt over time.
sions are run from various central locations, service response has been evidenced by the
such as community halls. Refugee Health range of health issues that people are pre- For example there are now increasing
Nurses meet with people to discuss pre- senting with, and the referrals required for numbers of families being seen, including
women requiring referral for maternity care.
senting health concerns and review their follow-up care.
The Network is undertaking an evaluamedical discharge information from detenThe concept of a Triage program was
tion. A GP is part of the team to provide initially developed in the South East. In tion of the program, supported by a Masters
medical services when required, includ- August 2012, the South East Medicare of Public Health student from La Trobe
ing reviewing medication and assessing Local, Australian Red Cross and Monash University who will be undertaking the data
serious health concerns, and if necessary, Health established such a program for analysis.

Foundation House staff raise funds for international projects
Char Horish

KESAN

This year Foundation House
staff have raised over $6000 for the Char
Horish school in Bangladesh. Foundation
House staff have been supporting Char
Horish since 2006, including raising the
funds to build the school. Staff now hold
annual events, including a popular film
night, raffles and dinners, to support its
ongoing classes for girls and boys, with
funds raised going towards paying teachers and providing books and stationery.
24

In June the natural therapies
team held a fundraiser for KESAN (the
Karen Environmental and Social Action
Network), raising $1000 to go towards
reprinting a Karen-Burmese traditional
medicine handbook. Traditionally rural
Karen communities use herbal medicines
extensively, and many Karen people who
use herbal medicines do not have regular
access to Western medicine. The book aims
to help Karen people living in Burma and

on the Thai-Burma border to identify and
use locally grown plants as herbal medicines
for common health complaints. As well
as preserving Karen traditional knowledge
and culture, this community development
project is linked to preserving forested areas
of land where the medicinal plants grow. In
July, Jenny Adams from the natural therapies team personally delivered the money
from the fundraiser to the very appreciative
KESAN crew in Chiang Mai, Thailand.
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Thank you

T

he Victorian Foundation for
Survivors of Torture continues
to assist individuals, families and
communities from refugee and refugeelike backgrounds to rebuild their
lives in Australia. We do this with the
support of a number of organisations,
groups and individuals. In addition to
financial support, Foundation House
and its clients benefit from a range of
in-kind and pro bono assistance. This
support is invaluable, we appreciate the
assistance and we value these important
relationships.
Foundation House would like to
acknowledge the support of the following
organisations and individuals.

Funding – government
• Commonwealth Department of Health
and Ageing
• Commonwealth Department of
Immigration and Citizenship
• Victorian Department of Education and
Early Childhood Development
• Victorian Department of Health
• Victorian Multicultural Commission
Other Funding
• Adult Multicultural Education Services
• Anna Wearne Trust
• Australian Communities Foundation
• Australian Red Cross
• Australian Unity
• Australia Post
• Mr David Baker
• Barr Family Foundation
• Caroline Durré Foundation
• Catholic Education Office
• City of Greater Dandenong
• Dara Foundation
• Five Boroughs
• Highlands Foundation
• Hugh Williamson Foundation
• The Jack and Hedy Brent Foundation
• Ms Margaret Johnson
• Kiwanis Club of Brighton
• Lord Mayor’s Charitable Foundation
• Lyngala Foundation
• Magistrates’ Court of Victoria
• Mr. Ian McKenzie
• McLeod Family Foundation
• nib foundation
• Northern Melbourne Medicare Local Ltd
• Professor Emeritus David Penington AC

• Portland House Foundation
• Mr Andrew Reeves
• SKAR Foundation
• Sidney Myer Fund
• 6A Foundation
• Mr Victor and Mrs Fleur Spitzer
• St Monica’s College
• Tan Family Foundation
• William Buckland Foundation
Donations were also made by a number
of generous individuals throughout the
year; big or small, every donation helps us
maintain, improve and expand the services
we provide to our clients, their families
and their communities.

VFST Institutional Ethics Committee:
• Father Andrew Hamilton
• Professor Helen Herrman
• Jill Jameson
• Dr.Caroline Lambert
• David Manne
• Dr Mary O’Brien
• Dr Dick Sloman
• Joe Zaia (resigned July 2013)

In-kind support and services
• Andrew Demetriou, Australian Football
League
Arts Access
• Circus Oz
• Integria (Mediherb)
• Geneveive Timmons, VFST Ambassador
• Glenn Hester, Glenn Hester
Photography
• Margaret Wehl and Family
• Southern Light Herbs
• UNHCR Regional Office Canberra
• Presentation Family Centre
• Mestre Roxinho
• Fabrice Ginape
• Mehro Amiri

It is not possible to list all the
individuals and organisations who make
contributions, large and small, to the
work of Foundation House. Many are
listed here and on the following pages,
but others include our colleagues in the
refugee, health, education and community
sectors, our Brunswick Office neighbours
— The Bouverie Centre and Milparinka,
our supporters at all levels of government,
our contractors and suppliers, and all the
people who provide valuable expertise,
feedback and input into our programs and
services in many ways.
To those organisation and individuals,
please accept our warm and sincere thanks
for your support during the past year.
Most of all, we would like to thank
our clients for their courage and for the
inspiration they provide to all of us, every
day.

Businesses providing employment
opportunities and mentoring support
for Ucan2
•
•
•
•
•

Australia Post
Coles
Holman, Fenwick and Willan
Kmart
Woolworths

Research Sub-Committee:
• Dr David Corlett
• Associate Professor Jeanette Lawrence
• Dr Raelene Wilding

A final word…

>> Fun at the 2012 Dandenong Foundation House end of year party.
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Foundation House Management and Staff
Board of
Management

Our staff

• Lynne Haultain
(Chair)
• David Bilander
(Deputy Chair)
• Michelle Groves
(Secretary)
• Richard Home
(Treasurer)
• Karen McLeod Adair
• Helen Casey
• Ian McKenzie
• Dick Sloman
• Shyla Vohra (from 12
March 2013)
• Lenora Lippmann
(until 13 June 2013)
• Genevieve Timmons
(until 2 October 2012)

Foundation
House Agency
Management Team
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Paris Aristotle AM
Sue Casey
David Gorrie
Lew Hess
Ida Kaplan
Roslyn Leary
Chris Pierson
Mardi Stow
Jo Szwarc

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(1 July 2012 –
30 June 2013)
Adriana Mendieta
Agnes Yousif
Ainslie  Hannan
David Gorrie
Amy Camilleri
Andrea Stewart
Andrew Kalon
Angela Woodburn
Anita Biesheuvel
Ann Marsh
Anne Clifford
Anne Mullarvey
Anne O’Connor
Annerose Reiner
Elvira Sotelo
Aphrodite McGregor
Arna Stewart
Baan Petros
Bernard Farrell
Bernard O’Rourke
Birat Sharma
Briele Hansen
Bruce Eady
Caroline Baker
Carolyn Wilson
Catherine Smith
Cecilia Clarke
Chris Pierson
Chris Hortin
Christina Pitter

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Christine Bakopanos
Christine Nathan
Kelly Doyle
Claire Priestley
Clara Harper
Clare Lincoln
Claudia Thoms
Colleen McFarlane
Connie Crowe
Conrad Aikin
Corinne Marcello
Cristina Wlasiuk
Dimitra Cromdos
Dina Korkees
Donna Chesters
Liz Alexander
Elizabeth Hess
Babette Sabella
Eric Brunet
Erin Hughes
Farida Bezhan
Fazela Tahery
Felicity Elkiana
Fiona Lorrimar
Fritha Melville
Gautam Gurung
Geoff Buckley
Georgia Phillips
Gillian Kerr
Ginger Ekselman
Giovanna Citta
Graciela Lopez
Guy Coffey

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Hala Chamas
John Haddad
Heidi Wegner
Helen Lacey
Hien Bui
Iamir Maloka
Ida Kaplan
Jacinta Craven
Jacob Haweil
Jacqueline Hoggart
Jacqueline Robson
Jane Grant
Jane Ellis
Janet Glover
Janina Munneke
Jan Borrell
Jasmina Mulugeta
Jaweed Mohammadi
Jeanette Vadala
Jenny Mitchell
Jen Adams
Jenny Addy
Jess Krummel
John Belieu
Josef Szwarc
Joyce Sadia-Peter
Julia Htoo
Julia Doherty
Kath Cooney
Kathryn Parle
Kerry Munnery
Khalilur Hamid
Kriss Karaiskos

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Kristina McConchie
Kristine Balfour
Kudzanayi Chirenje
Leesl Wegner
Lesley McLeod
Lew Hess
Lileyan Eilia
Luisa Capasso
Luke Neeson
Madeleine Valibhoy
Manny Bonnici
Mardi Stow
Margy Carney
Maria Tucci
Marilyn Magno
Mary Read
Mary Utter
Matthew Teran
Maureen O’Keefe
May Maloney
Michael Bromhead
Michelle Hunter
Miranda Nation
Morag Mckillop
Chitlu Wyn
Nadine Chamas
Najla Naier
Natasa Cordasic
Nyakong Twang
Olivia Kamashazi
Paris Aristotle
Parwin Miazoi
Paulette D’Argent

>> Foundation House CEO Paris Aristotle (front row, second from left) with the Board of Management.
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>> Just some of Foundation House staff, as at October 2012

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Philippa Duell-Piening
Philippa Newton
Pina Garasi
Rachel Vanstone
Radhika Santhanam
Rebecca Cole
Rebekah Oppenheim
Rose Harper
Roslyn Leary
Sabahete Flamuri
Salam Dankha
Samantha McGuffie
Samantha Dennis
Samiya Kako
Sandra Howlett
Sanjai Kissun
Sara Aryal
Sarah Berberi
Sarah Macwilliams
Saw Shwe
Sayed Wahidi
Serena Everill
Sharon Guo
Sharrin Murphy
Shelley Cook

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Simone Schuetz
Siobhan O’Mara
Sophie Cavanagh
Sophie Harvey
Stephanie Schweininger
Susan George
Susie Strehlow
Sue Casey
Susannah Tipping
Sue Liddelow
Tania Herbert
Thataw Kunoo
Therese Meehan
Thuy Nguyen
Toril Pursell
Tracey Um
Tun Mung
Victoria Ajoung
Wee Thaw Keh
Wendy Scicluna
William Fearnley-Sander
Zakia Ebrahim
Zamera Shariffie

Interns with
Research Program
•
•
•
•
•
•

Alexandra Bean
Kari Gibson
Clara Harper
Lucy Howard-Robbins
Ainslie Kimber
Stina Vest Stenkjaer

English Language
class volunteers
•
•
•
•
•

Margaret Wehl
Helen Hanrahan
Anne Hayman
Leonie Ball
Jenny Little

Other volunteers
Complementary
• Sophia Tipping
Therapies volunteers
•
•
•
•
•

• Alex Caldwell –
Shiatsu Therapist
• Lester Jones –
Physiotherapist
• Lani Kaplan –
Yoga Teacher
• David Kelly –
Physiotherapist

Kiwanis Brighton
John MacDonald
Anwen Lincoln
Arwel Lincoln
Volunteers and
mentors for the
Ucan2 program

Students
• Evan Jureidini,
University of
Melbourne
• Nalini Taneja, RMIT
• Scott Ward, RMIT

• Lara Kerr, RMIT
• Maddy Barber, RMIT
• Roya Khoshmashrab,
University of
Queensland.
• Maryann Barsoum,
La Trobe University
• Jess Ng, Deakin
University
• Robert Owen, Deakin
University
• Jasmyn Izzard, Deakin
University
• Lauren Goldberg,
Deakin University
• Julie Lebon,
Chisholm TAFE
• Winnie Pham,
Monash University
• Veronika
Blumenbach,
Swinburne University
• Paulette D’Argent,
RMIT

Foundation House Organisational Structure
Board of Management
CEO
Policy and
Research

Direct Services

Northern
Region
• Counselling
• Complementary
Therapies
• Capacity
Building

South East
Region
• Counselling
• Complementary
Therapies
• Capacity
Building

Western
Region
• Counselling
• Complementary
Therapies
• Capacity
Building

Mental
Health
Clinic

Service Innovation Program

Health Sector Development

Schools
Support
Program

Rural and
Regional
Program

Ucan2

Family
Strengthening

Refugee
Health
Network
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Financial report
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
THE VICTORIAN FOUNDATION FOR SURVIVORS OF TORTURE
ABN: 52 783 974 656

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Your Board Members submit the financial report of The Victorian
Foundation for Survivors of Torture for the financial year ended 30
June 2013.

Board Members
The names of Board members throughout the financial year and at
the date of this report are:
• Ian McKenzie
• Lynne Haultain
• Lenora Lippman (resigned on
• Helen Casey
13 June 2013)
• Michelle Groves
• Genevieve Timmons (resigned • Richard Home
• Karen McLeod Adair
on 2 October 2012)
• Shyla Vohra (appointed on 12
• Dick Sloman
March 2013)
• David Bilander

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the association is to provide a range of support
services to the survivors of torture who currently reside in Victoria.

Operating Result
The surplus amounted to $479,050 (2012: Surplus $163,579).

After Balance Date Events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the
financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the association, the results of those operations,
or the state of affairs of the association in future financial years.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Board:

for the year ended 30 June 2013
Notes

Revenue

2

Salaries, wages and on-costs
FASSTT

2013
$

2012
$

10,751,702

10,225,118

(6,898,189)

(6,574,890)

(22,443)

(46,460)

Bank and credit card charges

(2,591)

(3,908)

Building and occupancy costs

(448,895)

(383,206)

Equipment, computing / IT, supplies and
depreciation

(97,387)

(93,690)

Conferences, seminars, publications and
professional development

(56,058)

(89,711)

Interpreting costs

(618,890)

(632,244)

(1,178,911)

(1,127,507)

Advertising, volunteer, agency and Board
expenses

(5,981)

(5,100)

Motor vehicle expenses and depreciation

(331,710)

(377,729)

Program, consultant, contractor and client
costs

Client travel expenses

(41,726)

(43,780)

Printing, stationary and postage

(73,942)

(210,432)

Telephone expenses

(83,380)

(117,494)

Professional fees

(19,683)

(17,561)

(186,138)

(245,541)

(206,728)

(92,286)

Research and evaluation fees
Other expenses

(10,272,652) (10,061,539)

Total expenditure
Operating surplus before income tax
Income tax

3

479,050

Surplus for the year

—

479,050

163,579

—

—

479,050

163,579

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period

163,579

—

1(a)

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2013
Notes

Richard Home
Treasurer
8 October 2013

2013
$

2012
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

5

1,144,245

170,416

Term deposits

6

3,130,000

2,834,402

Trade and other receivables

7

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

544,236

390,912

4,818,481

3,395,730

NON‑CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

1,078,681

1,145,291

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT ASSETS

8

1,078,681

1,145,291

TOTAL ASSETS

5,897,162

4,541,021

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

9

Deferred income

187,480

236,697

1,993,740

978,864
996,169

Provisions

10

963,702

Borrowings

11

75,120

74,080

3,220,042

2,285,810

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

11

26,460

92,380

Provisions

10

240,282

231,503

266,742

323,883

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,486,784

2,609,693

NET ASSETS

2,410,378

1,931,328
1,517,335

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Retained earnings

12

1,517,335

General Reserve

13

893,043

413,993

2,410,378

1,931,328

TOTAL EQUITY

{{Our organisation}}
Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2013
Notes

for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

2013
$

2012
$

1,517,335

1,517,335

Retained earnings
Opening balance
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transfer to general reserve
Closing Balance

12

479,050

163,579

(479,050)

(163,579)

1,517,335

1,517,335

413,993

250,414

General Reserve
Opening reserves
Transfers from accumulated surplus
Closing Balance

13

Total equity at year end

479,050

163,579

893,043

413,993

2,410,378

1,931,328

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2013
Notes

2013
$

2012
$

11,371,534

10,336,728

(10,120,291)

(9,946,289)

247,486

237,211

1,498,729

627,650

(170,347)

(100,558)

21,045

66,709

(149,302)

(33,849)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from funding sources and operations
Payments to consultants, suppliers and
employees
Interest received
Net cash provided by operating activities

14

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings

(80,000)

(80,000)

Net cash used in financing activities

(80,000)

(80,000)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,269,427

513,801

Cash at beginning of financial year

3,004,818

2,491,017

4,274,245

3,004,818

Cash at end of financial year

5

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has
been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1981 of Victoria.
The financial report covers The Victorian Foundation for Survivors of
Torture as an individual entity. The Victorian Foundation for Survivors of
Torture is an association incorporated and domicile in Victoria, Australia
under the Associations Incorporations Act 1981.
For the purposes of this financial report, the entity is considered to be
a not-for-profit entity and as such has prepared this financial report with
reference to the requirements regarding Not-For-Profits in the Australian
Accounting Standards.
All amounts are presented in Australian dollars. The financial report
was authorised for issue by the Board of Management on the date shown
on the Board of Management declaration.
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies
adopted by the association in the preparation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated.

Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based
on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected non-current
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair
value basis of accounting has been applied.

Significant Judgements and Key Assumptions
No significant judgements have been made in applying accounting
policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.
No key assumptions have been made concerning the future and there
are no other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance date
that the Board Members consider have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Accounting Policies
(a) Income Tax
The association is exempt under Section 50-145 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.

(b)	Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property plant and equipment is carried at cost less,
where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment is carried at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually
by the association to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable
amount of those assets. The recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and the depreciated replacement cost.

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over the
useful lives of the assets to the association commencing from the
time the asset was held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are
amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease
or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets
are:
Class of Fixed Asset

Depreciation
Rates

Depreciation Basis

Building and improvements

3.7–33%

Diminishing Value / Straight Line

Plant and equipment

10–33%

Straight Line

Motor vehicles

27.5%

Diminishing Value

(c) Leases
Lease payments under operating leases, where substantially all the
risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

(d)	Employee Benefits
Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits
arising from services rendered by employees to balance date.
Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year together
with benefits arising from wages and salaries, and annual leave which
will be settled after one year, have been measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on‑costs.
Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
to be made for those benefits.
Contributions are made by the association to an employee
superannuation fund and are charged as expenses when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

(e)	Cash and Cash Equivalents

NOTE 2: REVENUE

for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at-call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments.

(f)	Revenue
Revenue includes revenue from services, the State and
Commonwealth Government and other sources supported by
community initiatives. Donations are recognised as revenue when
received.
Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when it is controlled. Where there are conditions attached
to the grant revenue relating to the use of those grants for specific
purposes it is recognised in the statement of financial position as a
liability until such conditions are met or services provided.
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into
account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue
has been established.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST).

(g)	Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when the association becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the financial assets expire or are transferred and
no longer controlled by the entity.
A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

(h) Borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the
fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated
with the borrowing. After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.
Gains or losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

(i) General Reserve
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer surplus
from retained earnings. There is no policy of regular transfer. It is
used to support on going projects, provide seed funding for new
projects and replace capital equipment.

(j) Impact of Adopting New Accounting Standards and New/
Revised Accounting Standards Not Yet Effective
There have been a number of amendments made to Accounting
Standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(“AASB”) that are not yet effective.
The Board Members do not believe that the new and revised
standards issued by the AASB that are not yet effective will have any
material impact on the financial statements.

for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

Commonwealth Department of Health and
Ageing

2013
$

2012
$

4,726,212

4,144,395

823,152

950,819

2,309,725

2,013,044

536,810

733,133

Commonwealth Department of Immigration
and Citizenship
Victorian Department of Health
Victorian Department of Education & Early
Childhood Development
Donations
Grants from Foundations, Trusts and
Corporations

65,556

65,272

1,356,194

1,770,231

232,301

242,579

Interest Received
Membership Subscriptions

3,683

2,012

Surplus on Sale of Assets

13,612

25,576

Consulting and Training Fees
Reimbursements, FASSTT and Other Income
Fee-For-Service – Counselling

63,976

76,889

380,553

139,695

239,928

61,473

10,751,702

10,225,118

NOTE 3: OPERATING SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
The operating surplus for the year is $479,050
(2012 surplus $163,579) and arises after charging:
2013
$

2012
$

Depreciation

221,953

238,512

Superannuation expense – defined
contribution plans

543,129

505,070

Operating lease expenses – rent of office
building

208,503

184,029

15,120

18,241

7,571

1,642

2013
$

2012
$

18,683

15,740

2013
$

2012
$

Notional interest charged on interest free loan
from Dara Foundation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

NOTE 4: AUDITOR’S FEES
Audit fees

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand

715

815

Cash at bank

1,143,530

169,601

Term deposits
Cash at end of year in Statement of Cash Flow

6

1,144,245

170,416

3,130,000

2,834,402

4,274,245

3,004,818

2013
$

2012
$

3,130,000

2,834,402

NOTE 6: TERM DEPOSIT
Term Deposit

The term deposits outstanding as at 30 June 2013 are a 12 month
deposit of $1,000,000, held at MECU maturing on 19 June 2014, 12
month deposit of $2,000,000 maturing on 27 June 2014 and 12 month
deposit of $130,000 matured on 30 June 2014. The interest rate applied
to all three term deposits is 4.20%.

NOTE 7: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables

2013
$

2012
$

424,480

322,601

Sundry debtors

10,500

10,500

Accrued revenue

83,864

38,186

Prepayments

25,392

19,625

544,236

390,912
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for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013
$

Buildings and improvements
Accumulated depreciation
Plant and equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Motor vehicles at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total of property, plant and equipment

for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

2012
$

874,370

752,207

(183,608)

(107,971)

690,762

644,236

424,085

478,127

(312,061)

(360,850)

112,024

117,277

912,025

933,791

(636,130)

(550,013)

275,895

383,778

1,078,681

1,145,291

Movements in Carrying Amounts

2013
$

2012
$

Written down value at the beginning of the year

644,236

618,803

Additions

122,162

60,312

Building and improvements

2012
$

Current

75,120

74,080

Non-current

26,460

92,380

101,580

166,460

The loan is an interest free loan provided by The Dara Foundation and is
repayable in quarterly instalments over 6 years. The balance represents
the discounted cash balance at 30 June 2013, using a discount rate of
6.5% (2012: 8%). The outstanding cash balance at 30 June 2013 was
$110,000 (2012: $190,000). The notional interest charge of $15,120
(2012: $18,241) is included in building and occupancy costs.

NOTE 12: Retained Earnings

2013
$

2012
$

1,517,335

1,517,335

Total comprehensive income for the period

479,050

163,579

Transfer to reserves

(479,050)

(163,579)

Closing Balance

1,517,335

1,517,335

893,043

413,993

NOTE 13: Reserves
General Reserve

Depreciation

(75,636)

(34,879)

Written down value at the end of the year

690,762

644,236

117,277

166,182

48,183

16,539

Plant and equipment
Additions

2013
$

Opening balance

Movements in the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and
equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial
year are as follows:

Written down value at the beginning of the year

NOTE 11: BORROWINGS

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer surplus from
retained earnings. There is no policy of regular transfer. It is used to
support on going projects, provide seed funding for new projects and
replace capital equipment.

NOTE 14: Net cash flow from operating activities
2013
$

2012
$

(7,569)

(1,641)

Operating surplus

479,050

163,579

Depreciation

(45,867)

(63,803)

Add back depreciation

221,953

238,512

Written down value at the end of the year

112,024

117,277

Less surplus on disposal

(13,612)

(25,578)

Disposal

Add Loss on disposal

Motor vehicles
Written down value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Written down value at the end of the year

NOTE 9: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables
Superannuation

NOTE 10: PROVISIONS

383,778

541,033

—

23,708

(7,433)

(41,133)

(100,450)

(139,830)

275,895

383,778

2013
$

2012
$

187,480

169,532

—

67,165

187,480

236,697

2013
$

2012
$

554,573

595,528

CURRENT
Annual leave
Long service leave

409,129

400,641

963,702

996,169

240,282

231,503

1,203,984

1,227,672

NON-CURRENT
Long service leave

Add back notional interest on loan
(Increase) Decrease in trade receivables

7,571

1,641

15,120

18,241

(153,324)

150,407

Increase (Decrease) in trade payables

(49,217)

(24,391)

Increase (Decrease) in provisions

(23,688)

112,225

1,014,876

(6,986)

1,498,729

627,650

Increase (Decrease) in revenue received in
advance

NOTE 15: MEMBERS
The organisation is an incorporated association. In the event of the
winding up or dissolution of the association, any property remaining
after the satisfaction of all debts and liabilities will not be distributed or
transferred to members, but will be distributed or transferred to other
institution(s) with similar objectives to The Victorian Foundation for
Survivors of Torture.

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE
The names of persons who were Board members at any time during the
year are set out in the Board’s Report. Board members do not receive
remuneration for services provided. There were no other transactions
that require disclosure for the year ended 30 June 2013. (2012: Nil)

NOTE 17: EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
The association has no capital commitments contracted for at 30 June
2013.
The association is subject to non-cancellable operating leases
that are contracted for but not capitalised in the financial report. The
Foundation’s obligations fall due as follows:
2013
$

2012
$

Not later than one year

228,818

140,474

Later than one year and not later than five years

279,759

190,471

508,577

330,945
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for the year ended 30 June 2013 (continued)

NOTE 18: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Price Risk

(a)	Financial risk management objectives and policies

The association is not exposed to price risk.

The association’s principal financial instruments comprise
receivables, payables, and cash and short–term deposits. These
activities expose the Foundation to a variety of financial risks: market
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board Members manage the different types of risks to
which the Foundation is exposed by considering risk and monitoring
levels of exposure to the risks identified and by being aware of the
environment and external factors that will impact the risk. This
includes monitoring interest rates and the factors that impact interest
rate movements, and determining how best to monitor the risk arising
from those movements. Ageing analyses and monitoring of specific
credit allowances are undertaken to manage credit risk, liquidity risk
is monitored through general business budgets and forecasts.
The Association holds the following
financial instruments:

2013
$

2012
$

4,274,245

3,004,818

Financial Assets:
Cash and term deposits
Receivables

424,480

322,601

4,698,725

3,327,419

Trade and sundry creditors

187,480

236,697

Borrowings

101,580

166,460

Total Financial Liabilities

289,060

403,157

4,409,665

2,924,262

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities:

Net Exposure

(b)	Risk Exposures and Responses

Liquidity Risk
The association’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal, as the
Foundation hold sufficient cash balances in order to ensure that all
liabilities are paid when due. The maturity of financial liabilities can
be summarised as follows:
2012

1 Year or
Less
$

Trade and Other Payables

236,697

—

—

236,697

74,080

92,380

—

166,460

310,777

92,380

—

403,157

Borrowings

Over 1 - 5
Years
$

More Than
5 Years
$

Total
$

The undiscounted cash flows from borrowings are as follows:
80,000

110,000

2013

1 Year or
Less
$

Over 1 - 5
Years
$

Trade and Other Payables

187,480

—

—

187,480

75,120

26,460

—

101,580

262,600

26,460

—

289,060

Borrowings

190,000
More Than
5 Years
$

Total
$

The undiscounted cash flows from borrowings are as follows:
80,000

30,000

110,000

NOTE 19: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Short-term Benefits
Salary ($)

Post Employment Benefits
Superannuation ($)

Total ($)

2013

946,055

85,505

1,031,560

2012

821,684

75,148

896,832

Interest Rate Risk
The association’s exposure to market interest rates relates primarily
to short term deposits held. The borrowings of the Foundation are
interest free. (See note 11). Balances subject to interest rate risk as
at 30 June 2013 are as follows:
$

$

Bank accounts

3.10%

1,143,530

169,601

Term Deposit –MECU

4.20%

2,000,000

1,500,000

Term Deposit –MECU

4.20%

1,000,000

1,200,000

Term Deposit – MECU

4.20%

130,000

134,402

4,273,530

3,004,003

Sensitivity analysis
The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk
exposures in existence at the balance sheet date. At 30 June 2013,
if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all
other variables held constant, surplus and equity would have been
affected as follows:
Net Surplus
Higher / (Lower)

As at 30 June

2013

2012

2013

$

$

$

2012
$

+2% (200 basis points) (2012: 2%)

85,485

60,800

85,485

60,800

-1% (100 basis points) (2012: 1%)

42,742

30,040

42,742

30,040

The association’s exposure to credit risk is minimal. Cash is
deposited in secure banking facilities to minimise the exposure
to credit risks of bank deposits. Trade receivables relate to Grant
and Government funding and are not considered to be a significant
exposure to credit risk.

The principal place of business of
The Victorian Foundation for Survivors of Torture is
Foundation House
6 Gardiner Street
Brunswick Vic 3056

161 Harvester Road
Sunshine Vic 3020

155 Foster Street
Dandenong Vic 3175

NOTE 21: AFTER BALANCE DATE EVENTS
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial
year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations
of the association, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs
of the foundation in future financial years.

Board Members Declaration

Net Assets
Higher / (Lower)

As at 30 June

NOTE 20: ASSOCIATION DETAILS

In the Board Members’ opinion:
• the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with the
Associations Incorporations Act 1981, the Accounting Standards, and
other mandatory professional reporting requirements;
• the attached financial statements and notes thereto give a true
and fair view of The Victorian Foundation for Survivors of Torture’s
financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the
financial year ended on that date; and
• there are reasonable grounds to believe that The Victorian Foundation
for Survivors of Torture will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and
is signed for and on behalf of the Board by:

Lynne Haultain
Chairperson
8 October 2013

Mr Richard Home
Treasurer
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Foundation House -—The Victorian Foundation for Survivors of Torture Inc. (VFST)
General Email – all offices: info@foundationhouse.org.au
Client referral email – all offices: AdminTeam@foundationhouse.org.au
Client referral telephone – all offices: (03) 9388 0022
Web address: www.foundationhouse.org.au

Locations:
Brunswick
6 Gardiner Street
Brunswick 3056
Victoria, Australia
Telephone: (03) 9388 0022
Fax: (03) 9277 7871

Dandenong
155 Foster Street
Dandenong, 3175
Victoria, Australia
Telephone: (03) 8788 3333
Fax: (03) 8788 3399

Sunshine
161 Harvester Road
Sunshine, 3020
Victoria, Australia
Telephone: (03) 9300 8670
Fax: (03) 9277 7871

Ringwood
Suite 5/45-51 Ringwood Street
Ringwood, 3134
Victoria, Australia
Telephone (voicemail):
(03) 9879 4638

